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NOTICE _
Notice is hereby given that the 34 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of M/s, IFIN

Securities Finance Limited will be held through video conferencing at Continental Chambers,
142, IIT Floor, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai — 600034 on Friday,
Septentber 29%, 2023 at 12,00 PM to transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Approval and Adoption of Financial Statements for Financial vear 2022-23

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on March 31, 2023, together with the Board of Directors' Report and Auditors' Report thereon,
including annexures thereto and thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution, as an Ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2023, together with Board of Directors’ Report and the Auditors Report thereon, including

annexures thereto be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2, Rc-appointmént of Shri Ramkumar Srinivasan (DIN: 01175498) as Non- Executive Director of the
Company. |
To appeint a director in place of Shri Ram Kumar Srinivasan, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and to consider and thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, the following resclution, as an Ordinary resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Shri Ram Kumar Srinivasan, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for reappointment, be and is hereby reappointed as a Executive Director of the

Company.”

3. Appointment and Remuneration of Statutory Auditors

To {ix remuneration of the Statutory Auditor of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section
139(5) and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to consider and thought fit, to pass with or without

modification, the following resolution, as an Ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139(5) and 142 and all other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) _

| ]




34" Annual Report —2022-23

Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being

in force) the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to-decide and fix the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditor of the Company to be appointed by Comptroller and Auditor

General of India (CAG) for the Financial Year 2023-24, as may be deemed fit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. To appoint Smt S Karpagam (DIN: 09755388) as Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), if any, the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152,161,196,197 and 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules

made thereunder

including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force] Smt S Karpagam (DIN: 09755388), who was appointed by the Board of Directors
as an Additional Director and designated as Managing Director with effect from 04.10.2022 be
and is hereby appointed as Managing Director for the period of one years with effect from
04.10.2022 of the company on the terms & conditions and remuneration as set out in the letter of
Deputation issued by IFCL"™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby authorized to digitally sign and file necessary e-form with the
Registrar of Companies and other statutory authorities as may be necessary in connection with the

above appointment.”

By order of the Board

For IFIN Securities Finance Limited

Y/

Place: Chennai Ramkvmar Srinivasan

Date: 05.09.2023 Director
DIN: 01175498
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Important Notes: _

1. Pursuant to the Circular No., 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13,2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5th, 2020, clarification circular No. 02/2021 dated
Jonuary 13th, 2021 and General Circular 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022 and General Circular10/2022
dated December 28 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporaie Affairs(collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”), permitted the holding of Anmial General Meeting (AGM) through VC/ OAVM,

without physical presence of the member at common Venue. Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the ensuing AGM though VC/OAVM.

2. The members have the option to participate in the meeting either in person or through Video
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM).

3. In compliance with applicable provisions of the Act read with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to
be conducted at the Continental Chambers, 3rd Floor, 142 M G Road, Nungambalkam, Chennai-
600034, Tamil Nadu which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM

4.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the Circulars, issued by the Minisiry of
Corporate Affairs, through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appoiniment of proxies by the members will not be available in
case of AGM through video conferencing,

5. However, the Body Corporates members (i.e. other than individuals) are entitled fo appoint
authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat. The body
corporate are required to forward a scanned copy or hard copy of its board or governing bedy s
resolution/authorization letter etc. authorizing their representatives to attend the AGM. The said
resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered email address
to cs@ifinitd.in or the hard copy can be sent at Continental Chambers, 3 Floor, 142 MG Road,

Nungambakkam, Chennai- 600034 addressing to company secretary.

6. Those Shareholders whose email IDs are not registered, are requested o register their email ID
with the company by sending E-mail to cs@ifinltd. in along with the following credeniials: i. Name
regisiered as per the records of the company ii. DPID-Client ID/ Folio Number iii. Email ID to be
registered for attending the Meeting.

7. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
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as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM
The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and afier the scheduled

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
Jacility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for all shareholders
of the compdny. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Muanagerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors, who are allowed to attend the Annual General Meeting without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Members will be allowed fo pose guestions during the course of the Meeting. The
questions/queries can also be given in advance at cs@ifinitd.in.

As per the MCA Circular, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the

Company af www.isflonline.com and the notice along with the Annual Report is being sent through

electronic mode to the members whase E-mail ID are registered with the company. Members may

note that the Notice will also be available on the Company’s website at www.isflonline.com.

Further, updation if any, will be provided on the website of the Company at www.isflonline. com.

All documents referred to in the Notice calling the AGM and the Explanatory Statement are open
Jor inspection electronically and/or at the regz'srered office of the company during the office hours
between 9.30 AM to 11.30 AM on all working days except Saturday. The same shall be shared with
the members on receipt of request. The members desiring to inspect the relevant documents referred
are required to send request on the email addvess- cs@ifinlid.in. An extract of such documents
would be send to the members on their registered email addyess. '

The route map for the venue of AGM is not annexed to this notice as the AGM is being conducted
through Video conferencing and/or other audio visual means.

Details of Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting of the
.Campany to be held on Thursday, September 29% 2023 are provided in Annexure - 4 of this notice,
For any queries & clarifications, members can contact through e-mail on cs@ifinltd.in or 044-
2830 6613.

The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect

of Special Businesses, as set out above is annexed hereto.
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INSTRUCTIONS FORMEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE
AS UNDER: -

1. AGM through VC/OAVM: Members will be provided with a fucility to attend the AGM through

video conferencing platform — Life size cloud

. The meeting invitation link and login credentials to join the AGM will be sent to the Members on

their vegistered email IDs latest by September 28", 2023, This will be done on first come first served

basis.

. Members whose email IDs are not registered with the company, may get their email IDs registered '

with the company by sending E-mail fo cs@ifinltd.in along with the following credentials: i. Name
registered as per the records of the company ii. DPID-Client ID/ Folio Number iii. Email ID fo be
registered for attending the Meeting. Members may send the request latest by September 28%, 2023.
In case of joint holding, the credentials of the ﬁrs; named holder shall be accepted.

. Members may attend the AGM, bjz Jfollowing the invitation link sent to their registered email ID.

Members will be able to locate Meeting 1D/ Password/ and JOIN MEETING tab, By Clicking on
JOIN MEETING they will be redirected to Meeting Room via browser or by running Temporary
Application, In order to join the Meeting, follow the step and provide the required details
(mentioned above — Meeting Id/Password/Email Address) and Join the Meeting. Members are

encouraged lo join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

. In case of Android/lphone connection, Participants will be required to download and Install the

appropriate application as given in the mail to them. Application may be downloaded from Geogle

Play Store/ App Store.

. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet audio settings as and when

asked while sefting up the meeting on Mobile App.

. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network, It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate

any kind of aforesaid glitches. Use of headphones is highly recommended, -

. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM may contact Ms. JM Sathyavathi,

Company Secretary- IFCI Financial Services Limited by sending an email request at the email id:
cst@ifinltd.in or Contact on — 044- 28306613,
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Annexure-A
Additional Information on Directors recommended for appointment/re-appointment:
Naime of the Director Mr, Ramkimar Srinivasan Ms. S Karpagam
Date of Birth June 12%, 1970 August 12,1973
Date of Appointment June 21%, 2017 October 04 2022
Expertise in Specific Banking and Financial Services Financial Services I
functional area
Qualification B.A (CS) & CMA B.Com., CMA
Experience 29 years functional experience 28 plus years in Financial
in Stock, Currency and Services
Commodity Broking,
Investment Banking and Retail i
Banking
Directorships  in  other | 1. IFIN Credit Limited 1. IFCI Financial Services
Companics Limited
2. IFIN Credit Limited
3. IFIN Commodities Limited
Number of Board Meetings 5 2
attended during the Year
(2022-23) - | '
Chairman/ Membership of | 1, IFIN Securities Finance 1. TFCI  Financial =~ Services
the Limited Limited
Cominittee ACIOSS all | a) Member in Audit Committee | a) Member in Audit Committee
Companies of the Board of the Board
b} Member in Nomination and b) Member of Nomination aﬁd
Remuneration Committee of Remuneration Committee of
the Board the Board
¢) Member in Share Transfer ¢) Member of Risk
Committee of the Board Management Commitiee of
d) Member in Risk the Board

Management Committee
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¢) Member in Asset liability
management Committee

2. IFIN Credit Limited

a} Member in Share Transfer

Committee of the Board

d) Member of IT Strategy
Comumittee of the Board

2. IFIN  Securities  Finance
Limited

a) Member of Audit Committee
of the Board
b) Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of
the Board
¢} Chairman of Risk Committes
d) Chairman of Asset Liability -
Management Comunittee
¢) Chairman of Share Transfer
Committee of the Board
3. IFIN Credit Limited
Chairman of Share Transfer
Committee of the Board
4, TFIN Commodities Limited

Chairman of Share Transfer

Committec of the Board
Shareholding in the | I Share 1 Share
Company
Relationship  with  other | Nil Nil

Directors
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

Ttem no. 4:

S T T ety

Smt. S. Karpagam was appointed as an Additional Director in the Board Meeting held on 4% October,
2022 in accordance with the provisions of Section152, 161, 196, 203 and Rule 8§ of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of the Company, Pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the above director can hold office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. Further, in the same meeting i.e. meeting held on 4'1_1 October, 2022
the Board appointed Smt. 8. Karpagam as the Managing Director of the Company, with immediate

effect, for a period of one year w.e.f, 4% October, 2022 subject to the approval of the shareholders,

Smt. 5. Karpagam is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of
Companies Act, 2013 and has given her consent to act as Director, The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board have completed a formal annual evaluation of her performance based on the

evaluation criteria as set in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that the appointment and presence of Smt. S. Karpagam on the Board as
the Managing Director will be desirable, beneficial and in the best interest of the Company. The Board
recommends the resolution set out in item no. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval and adoption

of the Members,

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives, except Smt, S,
Karpagam herself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. The Board recommends

the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution.
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To
The Members of

IFIN Securities Finance Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company presents the 34® Annual Report of IFIN Securities Finance
Limited (ISFL) together with the Audited Financial Statement, for the year ended on March 31, 2023,
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BOARD’S REPORT

Financial Performance (Rs. in lakh)
Parficulars ¥Y-2022-23 FY 2021-22

Revenue from Operations 108.80 102.67 |
Other Income 126.65 141.69

Total Income 235.45 244.36

Employee cost 43,04 63.27

Other expenses 148.07 140,73 ' |
Impairment on Financial Instruments 11.43 {2.83)

Total expenses 202.54 201.17

Surplus of Income over expenditure 32.91 43.19

Profit before tax 32.91 43.19

Tax (6.12) 12.56

Profit after Tax 39.03 30.63

Book size (Rs. In ¢r} 13.80 8.44

Business Ouilool and Performance

Business Environment f_c;r NBFC

Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs), public and private banks, and financial institutions form
the four broad constituents of the credit ecosystem of the Indian financial sector, with NBFCs being

a key pillar therein. Over the past few decades, NBFCs have navigated several storms.
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After several challenging years, fiscal 2023 has brought growth back into focus for NBFCs. To be

sure, NBFCs have demonstrated an innovative and resilient streak over the years, adapting efficiently,
even during the Covid-19 pandemic, to an evolving credit landscape, NBFCs are stronger and more
resilient today, and better positioned in almost all operationally critical parameters, Overall, the sector

has much stronger balance sheets today.

After weathering countless challenges over the past three fiscals, exacerbated by the Covid-19
pandemic, fiscal 2023 has brought growth back into focus for NBFC. This is expected to continue
into fiscal 2024, with assets under management (AUM) of NBFCs projected to increase 13-14% vis-
a-vis single-digit growth over the past three fiscals. The acceleration will ride on improving economic

activity, strengihened balance sheet buffers, and better asset quality metrics.

Over the past three fiscals, NBFCs largely focused on liquidity, capital and provisicning buffer.
These, combined with the consistent improvement in economic activity, have put the sector in a better

position today to capitalize on growth opportunities.

Competition from banks and rising interest rates are the key challenges

While NBFCs are relatively well placed today as compared to the past few years, though competition
from Banks and the rising interest rate scenario had posed challenges. Competition from banks has

intensified, especially in loan product.

Digital lending - On the edge of reorientation

Digital lending in India today is on the edge of reorientation, as the segment navigates crosscurrents
of increasing regulatory supervision amid continuing influx of digital lenders. Providing the much
needed support to the ecosystem is enhanced mobile network coverage, rising smartphone usage, and
increasing availability of formal data. Indeed, the space has the potential to change the anatomy of
the Indian financial ecosystem.

Growth of digital adoption in India is reflected in the rise in the RBI digital penetration index from
100 m March 2018 to almost 350 in March 2023 (Source : Crisil)

Digital lending gwidelines leading to reorientation of business models

While the regulatory regime is still evolving, the RBI has announced digital Iending guidelines this
fiscal, which could alter the way of doing business, increase operating expenses and change

documentation models. The guidelines on disbursemenis and collections being directly routed
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between the bank account of the lender and the borrower will impact business models of some NBFCs,

Players now have to come out with a key fact statement as per RBI guidelines and disclose the annual
percentage rate (APR) upfront. While charges used to be disclosed to borrowers eatlier 100, the new’
guidelines could impact incremental business as borrowers will now be able to see their total annual
costs upfront and compare them with the alternatives. The introduction of the cooling off period of 3
days without any prepayment penalty may affect retention of customers, which is crucial, given the

short tenure of loans and the relatively high cost-of acquisition for NBFCs.

Product wise performance

ISFL presently has two main products under its poﬁfolio basket viz Loan against shares and Loan
against mutual funds. ISFL is focusing on online digital mode through Software as a Service (SaaS)
models. It may be noted that there were no slippages to NPA during FY 22-23 and all Loan accounts
in this fiscal are Standard Assets.

Portfolio improvement

ISFL has taken a conscious decision to diversify its risk by focusing on retail clients, The evolution of

ISFL’s portfolio of Loan accounts is as given in the chart below;

As on 31% March 2023
Product wise A ticket
Loan Product No. of Active Loan O/8 I:;z:zl:r;:; O:rli:rag;:din;
clients {Rs. In Crore) (Rs. In lakhs)
Loan against Shares 25 6.44 25.76
Loan against Mutual Funds 223 7.44 3.33
Total 248 13.88
Loan Outstanding Comparison — Year on Year - March 2022 & 2023
No of Active Loan Qutstanding Average Loan
Year on Year
Client Rs. In Crore Ticket Size Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2022 67 8.46 12.63
As on 31st March 2023 248 13.88 5.60
Year on Year Growth % 270% 64%

I —
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Financial performance

Revenue from the operations of the Company has increased marginally from Rs 102.67 lakhs in FY
21-22 to Rs 108.80 lakhs in FY22-23, mainly due to increase in Interest on loans from Rs 102.49 lakhs
to Rs 106.55 lakhs in FY 22-23, However, other Income showed a reduction frorﬁ Rs 141.69 lakhs in
FY 21-22 to Rs 126,65 lakhs, primarily on account of lesser profit on sale of Investment (Rs 62.14
lakhs vis Rs 89.25 lakhs last year ). . _

Even though the employee expenses showed remarkable reduction from Rs 63.27 lakhs in FY 21-22
to Rs 43.04 lakhs in FY 22-23 and other expenses showed only a marginal increase over last year
attributable to higher impairment on account of Provisions on Standard Assets ( Rs 11.43 lakhs in
FY 2022-23 vs Rs {(-)2.83 lakhs in FY 21-22 ),the total expenses during FY 22-23 were however
hovering around the same Ievel of Rs. 201-202 lakhs as in last year.

Lesser Total Income and almost same level of Total Expenses in FY 22-23 contributed to a decrease
in Profit before Tax to Rs 32.91 Jakhs in FY 22-23 from Rs 43.19 lakhs in FY 21-22 Profit After Tax
however showed an increase to Rs 39.03 lakhs in FY 22-23 from Rs 30.63 lakhs in FY 21-22.

Matervial Developments in Human Resonrces/ Indusirial Relations front, including number of

employees:

The company has adequate human resources commensurate to the size of the business. As on March
31%, 2023, there were 5 employees on rolls of the company. It further utilized the services of 3

employees who were on deputation from its parent company- IFIN.
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3. Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Directors for the year ended March 31%, 2023,

4. Transfer Te Reserves
For the FY 2022-23, the Company had reported a profit after tax of Rs. 39.03 lakh and Rs. 7.81 Lakh
was transferred to Statutory Reserve as on March 31%, 2023.

5. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Changes in Directors and KMFP during the vear 2022-23:

i) Mr. Karra Visweswar Rao (DIN: 08111685) who was appointed as Managing Director of the
Company with effect from 01.07.2021, ceased to be associated with the company with effect fom
04.10.2022 on account of withdrawal of his nomination by IFCI Limited.

i) Ms. S Karpagam (DIN: 09755388) was appointed as an Additional Director and designated as
Managing Director of the company with effect from 04.10.2022.

iii) Mr. Ramesh NGS who retired by rotation at the 33" Annual General Meeting held on September
20%. 2022, was re-appointed as the Director of the Company. He was ceased fo be associated with
the Company with effect from 17.04.2023 on account of his resignation.

iv). Mr. Siddharth Dwivedi, Company Secretary tendered his resignation and was relieved from his
services with effect from 15.06.2022.

v) Ms Sanjana Chhabra, Coropany Secretary had been appointed as Company Secretary with effect

from 31.10.2022. She also tendered her resignation as Company Secretary and was relieved of
her services with effect from 26,07.2023. |
vi) Mr. Ramkurmar Srinivasan {DIN: 01175498), director will retire by rotation at the conclusion of !

the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment.

The Board wishes to place on record its gratitude and appreciation for the valuable contributions
made by all the Directors/KMPs who have resigned from their respective offices during their tenure
in the Company.

As at March 31, 2023, the Board consisted of 5 (five) Directors comprising of One Nominee Director,
Two Non-Executive Directors, an Independent Director and a Managing Director. The Management
of the Company is headed by the Managing Director who operates under the supervision and control

of the Board.
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The composition of the Board, number of meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board

Meeting and the number of the Directorship in other companies in respect of each Director, who was

on Board as on March 31%, 2023, is as given below:-
) No. of other
Attendance Particalars | Directorships as on '
| March 31%, 2023
I‘jo Name of Director No. of Meetings during Other Director-
the tenure of respective ships (Including
directors in FY 2022-23 Private Limited
Held Attended Companies )
1. Mr. Ramesh NGS 6 5 8
2 Mr. Sanjay Wasantrao Tanksale 6 6 -
3 Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco 6 6 3
4. | Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao @ 4 4 -
5 Mr. Ramkumar Srinivasan 6 6 1
6 Ms. S Karpagam © 2 2 3
Notes:
a) Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao has resigned on account of withdrawal of Nomination by the
appointing authority-IFCI- with effect from 04,10.2022.
b) Ms. S Karpagam was appointed as Managing Director with effect from 04.10.2022.

During the Financial Year 2022-23 Six (6) Board Meetings were held on the following dates:

17.05.2022 - 02.08.2022 30.08.2022
04.10.2022 31102022 30.01.2023

Remuneration of Directors

The Non-Executive Directors except nominees of [FCI Limited and IFCI Financial Services Limited
(IFIN) (parent company) are paid sitting fees for every meeting of the Board and its Committees
attended by them. Sitting fees has been paid to the Independent Director (Non- Executive) for the Board
and Committee meeting attended by him during Financial Year 2022-23.
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Committee of Beard of Directors

‘A) Audit Committee:

The Audit Commitiee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013. The compesition of the committee as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

No. of Meetings during the

S, Designation tenure of respective
No. Name of the Director HCatégory directors in FY 2022-23
| Held Attended
Mr. Sanjay Wasantrao Tanksale | Chairman 5 5
2. | Mr, Ramkumar Srinivasan Member 5 5
3. | Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao® Member . 3 3
4. | Ms. 8 Karpagam ® Member 2 2
Notes:

a) Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao has resigned on account of withdrawal of his Nomination by
the appointing authority-IFCI with effect from 04.10.2022,

by Ms. S Karpagam was appointed as Managing Director and Member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 04.10.2022

The Committee met Five (5) times during the year on the following dates:

17.05.2022 02.08.2022 30.08.2022

31.10.2022 30.01.2023

Terms of reference in brief:

1.

el

The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

Review and monitor the anditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of the
audit process;

Examination of the financial statements of the Company and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

Overseeing the vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower policy of the Company;
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" 10. Such other tertns and reference mentioned under Companies Act, 2013 and as amended from time
to time;
11. Such other matters as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time,

B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted as per requirements of

the Companies Act and the composition of the comimittee as on March 3 1%, 2023 is as follows:

S, Name of the Director . Designation No. of Meetings during the tenuse
No. | Category ~of respective directors in FY
' 2022-23
Held Attended

N Mr. Sanjay Wasanirao Chaioman 3 3
Tanksale

2. | Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao ® | Member 2 2

3. | Mr, Ram Kumar Srinivasan Member 3 3

4 | Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco Member 2 2

5 | Ms, S Karpagam ® Member 1 1
Notes:

@) Mr. Karra Visweswara Rao has resigned on account of withdrawal of his Nomination
by the appointing authority-IFCI with effect from 04.10.2022,

b) Ms. S Karpagain was appointed as Managing Director and a member of the Committee
with effect from 04.10.2022 '

¢) Mr.Alan Savio Pacheco was inducted in the committee vide approval of the Board in
its meeting held on 02.08.2022

The Committee met three (3) times during the year on the following dates:

02,08.2022 - 04.10.2022 30.01.2023

Terms of reference in brief:
1. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Senior

Management as per the criteria laid down and recommending to the Board their appointment and

removal.



© "Senior Management" means personne] of the Company who are members of its core management

6.

C

“The Share transfer committee is duly constituted in the company. The committee met twice in the
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team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the

executive directors, including the functional heads.

independence of a Director.

The Committee shall evaluate performance of every Director.

The Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive atfributes and

The Committee shall also fornulate and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the

remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel and other employees.

to time

) Share Transfer Committee

reporting financial year on 20.06.2022 and 07.12.2022.

The composition of the committee as on March 31%, 2023 is as follows:

Such other terms and reference mentioned under Companies Act, 2013 and as amended from time

Other functions and duties specified by Board of Directors from time to time.

No. of Meetings during the

Designation tenure of respective
5. No. Name of the Director
/Category directors in FY 2022-23
Held Attended
Chairman
1. | M. KV Rao - 1 1
( 1ill 04.10.2022 )
Chairman
2. | Ms, S Karpagam 1 1
( Since 05.10.2022 )
3. | Mr. Ramkumar Srinivasan Member . 2 2

D

)} Other Internal Committees:

The Company has also constituted the following internal committees:

i) Credit Commitiee

ii) Internal Complaints Committee Under The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013

iii) Risk Management Commitice
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iv) Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

v) Investment Committee

7. General Meetings held during the Firancial Year 2022-23,
The General Meetings of the company held during the financial year are as under:

General Meeting .'33“1 Annual General Meeting

Continental Chamber, 3™ Floor, 142 M.G. Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai
Venue - 600034, Tamil Nadu

Through Video Conferencing

Date and Day of

. Thursday, Septernber 29th, 2022
meeting

8. Annual Return
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall place a copy of the
Annual return in prescribed format on the website of the company and the web-link of
Such annual return shall be disclosed in the Board's report.

The link 1s provided below:

URL: | https://www.isflonline.com/abontus

9. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by us, your Directors make the following statements in tetms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies

Act, 2013:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed

along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2022-23 and of the profit and [oss

of the company for that period;




ISEL. ' 345 Annual Report —2022-23

¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

10. Declaration given by independent directors under sub-section (6) of section 149.

The Independent Director of the company has declared that he meets the criteria of independence in

terms of sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and there is no change in his status

of independence as on March 31%, 2023, The sitting fees had been paid to the Independent Director

for the Board and Committee Meetings attended by him during the vear 2022-23.

il.  Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details,

The Company has in place 2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors” appointment and

remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a

director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178.

Salient Features:

The salient features of the policy include the following:

The objectives of the policy

Framework of the policy

Eligibility criteria for recommending a candidate to be appointed on the Board of Directors
such as the education qualification, relevant experience and expertise, disqualifications,
ascertainment of ‘fit and proper criteria’, criteria of independence of Independent Directors
Board level remuneration structure

Monitoring and evaluation and

Board Diversity

The copy of the policy has been made available at the website of the Company. The link is provided

below:

URL:

https://www.isflonline.com/docs/4.%20Annexure%20-% 20111%20-%20NRC%20Policy. pdf
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12. Auditers

Being subsidiary of a Government Company, your Company is also a Government Company. The
Office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) vide its letter dated August 18, 2021 had
appointed M/s. Sanjiv Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Chennai (FRN- 0035728} as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the FY 2022-23. The CAG shall appoint the statutory auditor
for financial year 2023-24.

13.

Details of Frauds

There is no fraud as reported by Auditors during the year under review.

14.  Explanations/comments on the report of Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The report of Comptroller & Auditor General of Indiz on the accounts for the year ended 31st March,
2023 under Companies Act, 2013 is attached herewith as Annexure-T to this repoit.

The RBI Norms and Acceunting Standards

Your Company complies with the directives issued as well as the norms prescribed by Reserve Bank

of India for NBFCs and in the preparation of the financial statements, the applicable accounting

standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

Disclosure requirements as per RBI regulations for NBFCs

The Company during the whole of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, as well as till this date

in the cutrent financial year, has not accepted/held public deposits, as defined in Non-Banking

Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. The company

will not accept public deposits in future also without obtaining prior written permission of Reserve
Bank of India.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the financial statement.

e —————————— e e—————
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Related Party Transactions
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All transactions entered by the Company with Related Partics wete in the ordinary course of business

and at Arm’s Length pricing basis, . The transactions entered with helding company/gtoup company

are as follows:

Salient terms of the
Duration of .
Name (s) of the related | Nature of contracts/ contracts or
Sr. the contracts/
party & nature of | Arrangements/ arrangements or
No. arrangements/
relationship’ transaction transaction including the
transaction
value, if any
As per
Reimbursement ~ of | Omnibus Ordinary ~ course  of
office expenses approval  for | business
FY 2022-23
As per
. Omnibus Ordinary  course  of
Sharing of man power
approval  for | business
FY 2022-23
L. . As per
IFCI Financial Services .
1 o Omnibus Ordinary  course  of
Limited- Holding Commission payable :
approval  for | business
Company '
FY 2022-23
As per
Unsecured Short term | Omnibus Ordinary  course  of
advances approval  for | business
FY 2022-23
As per
Omnibus Ordinary  course  of
DP Charges _ .
approval  for | business
FY 2022-23
As per
5 Stockholding Corporation Omnibus Ordinary  course  of
of India Limited Commission payable | approval  for [ Business
FY 2022-23
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During the financial year 2022-23, the company had no materially significant transactions with the

related parties which may have a poteniial conflict with the interest of the company.

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with related parties are given in notes to the financial
statement. Information on transactions with related parties pursnant td Section 134(3)(lt) of the Act
read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-II in Form AQC-
2. |
The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on Dealing with
related party transactions which has been duly approved by the Board. The policy is available on the

website of the company at: hitps://www.isflonline com/aboutus.

The details relating to depesits, covered under chapter V of the Act

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of
provisions of chapter V — Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with rules thereunder.

Materizal changes and commitments

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

between the end of Financial Year (March 31%, 2023) and the date of this repoit,

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and eufgo &

expenditure on research and development.

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, Section 134(3) (m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, conservation
of energy and technology absorption does not apply to the Company.

However, the company has taken measures to conserve energy by having energy efficient electronic
equipment. As regards absorption of technology, your Company has installed computer systems,
software packages and other office equipment to increase its organizational efficiency, maximize

productivity and to gain competitive advantage.
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Your Company has neither incurred any expenditure nor earned any income in foreign exchange.

Further, your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and Development.

Risk Concerns and Management

The company is exposed to various risks that are inherent part of the financial services business. The
Company has formulated and put in place a Board approved Risk Management policy. The policy
encompasses identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring and mitigation of various risks
faced by the company. The policy is reviewed every year. The company has constituted the Risk
Management Committee and the Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan
and ensuring its effectiveness. The risks identified on a time to time basis are addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Risk Management Comumittee inter alia reviews various risks to which the company is exposed to /
risks associated with any new initiatives and considers the mitigants suggested by the business heads
/ departmental heads / Chief Risk Officer. Risk Management Committee thereafter submits its
recommendations on the various risks and the mitigants thereof to the Board.

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprised of three members viz, Ms S Karpagam
(Chairperson), Mr Ramkumar Srinivasan (Memiber) and Mr. AV Pushparaj, (Membet). The Risk
Commitiee met twice in FY 2022-23. (Dates are 05.05.2023 & 14.03.2023) |

Internal Finanecial Control

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Financial Controls commensurate with the size of
the Company and nature of its business which ensures orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies and safeguarding of its assets. The Board of Directors had
appointed M/s S Chenthilkumar & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditor of the
Company for the FY 2022-23 to conduct internal audit of the functions and the activities of the
Company. The findings and recommendations of the Internal Auditors were reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors and necessary corrective actions were duly undertaken.

In keeping with the Directions issued by RBI on Managing Risks and Code of Conduct in Outsourcing
of Financial services by NBFCs, the activity of internal audit was outsourced to M/s 'S Chenthilkumar
& Associates, Chartered Accountants though the control of the audit will remained with the

Managenment and Audit committee of ISFL.
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24. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had approved the
policy on Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower and the same was hosted on the website of the company.,
This policy inter-alia provides a direct access to the Managing Director of the compauy and the

Chairman of the Audit Committee, as the case may be.

Your Company hereby affirms that no employee/ Director have been denied access to the Managing
Director/ Chairman of the Audit Committee, as the case may be and that no such complaints were

received during the year.

23. Anti- Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of
Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013,

An internal Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of complaints of their nature and that
all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No

complaint has been received by the internal Complaints Committee/ by the Company during the year.

26. Board Evaluation

* The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors have reviewed the performance
of Board and its committees taking into consideration the contributions made by the

Directors/members of the Committee in its meeting held on August 07, 2023.

Subsequently, the Board has made formal annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its
comuittees and individual directors taking into consideration the evaluation criteria as set in the

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company in its meeting held on August (7, 2023.
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27. Significant and Material Ovders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting

the Going Concern status and company’s operations in future

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or Tribunals which

would impact the going concern status of the Company.

28. Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016.

The Company has neither made any application nor are any proceedings pending against the Company

under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review. Consequently there

are no details required to be disclosed, as the said clause is not applicable for year ended 31.03.2023.

29, The details of difference between amount of the Valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institation

along with the reasons thereof.

The Company has not availed any one time settlement facility, during the year under review,
therefore providing of details with respect to difference in the amount of valuation done at the time
of one time Settlement and the Valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial

Institution does not apply to the company.

30. Details of employees under Section 197 read with Sub rule 5 (2) of the Companies

(Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

The company has no employee in respect of whom the information required under Section 197 read
with Sub rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, as amended, is required to be given. The Board further placés on record ifs appreciation

of the services of all the employees of the Company.
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The Board of Directors express their gratitude for the co-operation, guidance and support received
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By Order of the Board

For IFIN Securities Finance Limited

S Karpagam :
Managing Director Director
DIN: 09755388 DIN: 01175498

Date: 05.09.2023

Place: Chennai
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Annexure-I

| COMMENTS

AN COMPIROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER S1EC ¥ 34306) () OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IFINSECURITIES FINANCE LIMTUIED, FOR THE
YEARLNIZZD 31 MARCH 2028,

The preparation of fnancla] staeisits of 1FIN Stewities Finance Limited, Tor the

year endéd 31 March 2023 in accardanee with the Financigl reporting framewods proseribed.
under e Companies Acl, 2013 {Act) is the raspousibility: of the mpapagement of ilie.
company. The statttory auditors appointed By the Comprolier gud Auditos Generl of Tindis.
under secton 3% (5 of e Act |5 respoasthble far sxpressing opinion on the financdal
sintepents wider seetlon 143 of the Act baved ¢ fudependent audit in secordince with the

heen déne by them vide thelr AnditBepout dated 11.05.2023,

1, on behalf of the Compireller and Auditor General of India,. have dedidad. not to
gondiet 4y supplameantary audit o7 fe; Hnancial stegments of 1FIH Securiiiey I-‘"i'__:iauca
Limited, foi the year sidad: 3] Marek 2028 undeér section 143 (&) (a) ol the Aot

For and on bebal{of thy,
Compidialler 8 Audivor General of Tndia

& Nellrons At
(8. Vallia i‘i)_ &% .'
Princips] Director of Corsnerdial Auwdit ;

Date: 06.07.2023
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Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis
S. No. Particulars

a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

¢) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value,
if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188 ' '

2. Details of all cortracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

The transactions at arm length basis are as follows:
S. No. Particulars Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 1. IFCI Financial Services Limited

a) Reimbursement of office
expenses

b) Sharing of man power

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction ¢) Commission payable

d) Unsecured Short term Advances

¢) DP Charges

) ) As per Omnibus approval for FY
Duration of the contracts/artangements/transaction  by5.93

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Ordinary Course of business

trangaction including the value, if any

Date of approval by the Board 17.05.2022

Amount paid as advances, if any Nil : :
Particolars Details
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2. Stockholding Corporation of
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship India Limited
1 ) Commission payable
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
) ) As per Omnibus approval for FY
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 2022-23
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Ordinary:Coutss of business
transaction including the value, if any
17.05.2022
e) Date of approval by the Board
) Amount paid as advances, if any il
By Order of the Board

For IFIN Securities Finance Limited

qg’lﬂ% Q)//

S Karpagam %‘lml\uma
Managing Director Director
DIN: 09755388 DIN: 01175498

Date: 05.09.2023

Place: Chennai
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Chartered Accountants

Non- Banking Financial Companies Auditors' Report (Reserve Bank of India) Directions, 2016

Reserve Bank of India vide its nofification no RBI/DNBS/2016-17/48 Master Direction DNBS,
PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 29, 2016 has issued directions to the auditors of Non- Banking
financial Companies not accepting deposits from public to report on matters specified therein. Accordingly, we
report in refation to [FIN Securities Finance Limited, a non-banking finance company audited by us on the specified
requirements for the financial year ended 315t March 2023 as under:

To,

The Board of Directors,

IFIN Securities Finance Limited,
Chennai

1. The Company is engaged in the business of non - banking financial institution as defined in Section 45-|
(a) of the RBI Act and has obtained Certificate of registration (CoR) no B-07-00672 dated 8" October
2013 (in lieu of CoR no B-07-00672 dated 10th January 2002) from Reserve Bank of India.

2. We hereby confirm that Assets / Income pattern of company is more than 50% of its total Assets / Income
for financial year ended 31st March 2023,

3. The Company is meeting the Net owned fund requirement as laid down in the Master Direction- Non-
Banking Finance Company-Systematically Important Non Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

4. As per Records, the Board of Directors had passed a resolution during the year for non-acceptance of
public deposits.

5. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended 31st March 2023.

6. The Financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard Rules) 2015. The Company has recognised revenue using
effective interest rate method based on the materiality and has provided for impairment of financial assets
by applying the expected credit loss model.

7. The Capital adequacy ratio of 176.74% as disclosed in the return submitted to the Bank in form DNBS03
has been arrived on provisional basis and the correct capital adequacy ratio is 177.16% and the same is
in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed by the bank.

8. The Company has fumished to the Bank the provisional annual statement of Capital funds, risk
assets/exposure and risk assets ratio (DNBS03) within the stipulated period.

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003572S

<2l

CA K Rajesh Jain

Partner

Date: 19/05/2023 S Membership No.236691

Place: Chennai UDIN: 23236691BGYJTB4961
rth Floor, Empee Tower, WWW.Ssaca.in
#59, Adhithanar Salai (Formerly Harris Road), Phone: +91-44-4260 1332

Chennai — 600 002, Tamilnadu, India. Email: contact@ssaca.in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of IFIN Securities Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IFIN Securities Finance Limited (‘the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit and other comprehensive income and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of financial assets as on 31/03/2023 | Our audit procedures included the following:
(Expected Credit Loss)
(Refer note 3 & 22 of the financial statements) Read and assessed the company's accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets and their
Ind AS 109 relating to “Financial Instruments” requires compllance with Ind AS 109.

the company to provide for impairment of its financial . Assessed the approach of the Company for

assets designated at amortised cost using the categorisation of loans into various stages.

expected credit loss (ECL) approach. Tested a sample of performing (stage 1)

The Company has recognized impairment loss assets to assess whether any SICR or loss

] allowance of ¥ 28,79,929 as at 31 March 2023 and indicators were present requiring them to be

///g S80phas, recognized provision for ¥ 11,42,638 in its classified under stage 2 or 3.

AR~ T \§fé ent of profit and loss. This involves 2. Engaged our team to review management's

=3 i n;a ment's judgement in the calculation of approach for calculating ECL and assess the
1hee Tower, WWW.Ssaca.in
r Salai (Formerly Harris Road), Phone: +91-44-4260 1332

0 002, Tamilnadu, India. Email: contact@ssaca.in
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impairment allowance which has a significant impact
on the financial statements.

Management is required to determine the expected
credit loss that may occur over either a 12-month
period or the remaining life of an asset, depending on
the categorisation of the individual asset.

The key areas of judgement include:

1. Categorisation of loans in Stage 1, 2 and 3 based
on identification of:
(a) exposures with significant increase in credit
risk (‘'SICR') since their origination and
(b) Individually impaired / default exposures.

key assumptions i.e., probability of default
(PD) and loss given default (LGD) used to
determine ECL.

3. Tested the periods considered for capturing
underlying data as base to PD and LGD
calculations are in line with Company's recent
experience of past observed periods.

4. Performing test of details over calculation of
ECL for assessing the correctness of the
same,

5. Assessed whether the disclosures on key
judgements, assumptions and quantitative
data with respect to impairment loss
allowance in the financial statements are

appropriate and sufficient.
2. Techniques used to determine Loss Given Default
(‘LGD") and Probability of Default ('PD') to calculate an
ECL based on past experience. As a result of the above audit procedure, no material
differences were noted.

3. The impact of different future macroeconomic

conditions in the determination of ECL.

These judgements required the models to be
reassessed to measure the ECL, Given the size of
loan portfolio relative to the balance sheet and the
impact of impairment allowance on the financial
statements, we have considered this as a key audit
matter,

Management’s Responsibilities for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
ntinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
m basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
o realistic altemative but to do so.

rd of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

RFI00E~Empee Tower,
#59, Adhithanar Salai (Formerly Harris Road),
Chennai - 600 002, Tamilnadu, India.

WWwW.Ssaca.in
Phone: +91-44-4260 1332
Email: contact@ssaca.in
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, s
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

(i_h&during our audit.
041'-{‘:\\
We, @;}, ovide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
= <ereqyir regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
i(f._ oréaso a{:ﬂ }be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) The Company being a government company, the requirement of obtaining written representations from
the directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 164 (2) of the Act is not applicable vide MCA
Notification G.S.R 463 (E) dated 5" June 2015.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report
expressed an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

(g) The Company being a government company, the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in respect of whether the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

(h) As per the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in pursuance to Section
143(5) of the Act, on the basis of the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us, we give in the "Annexure C', a statement on the matters specifically so directed.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
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ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

(@) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The company has neither declared nor paid interim dividend or final dividend during the year.
Therefore, reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not

applicable,

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the
members of [FIN Securities Finance Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report
that:

i) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(@)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, plant & equipment have been physically verified by the management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification at reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. '

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we report that the
Company does not hold any immovable property as at the balance sheet date and hence reporting under clause
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) We have been informed that no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
company as at March 31,2023 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and Rules made thereunder.

ii) (@) The Company is in the business of giving loans and as such does not have any inventory and hence reporting
under clause 3(ii)(a) the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 Crore, in aggregate, at any
point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and
hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii) (a) The Companies principal business is to give loans and hence the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of the loans are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest have been stipulated for the loans and the
repayments or receipts has generally been regular.

(d) There is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days and hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (d) of
Qrder is not applicable.

& mpanies principal business is to give loans and hence the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (e) of the Order is
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(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not
applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans granted as applicable. The Company has not provided
any guarantees or given any security or made any investments to any party covered under Section 185 of the Act.

v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

vi) The maintenance of cost record has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Provident fund, Employees’ state Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' state
insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable,

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, there
are no dues of income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax that
have not been deposited on account of any dispute as at March 31, 2023,

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions that
are not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order not
applicable.

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained
any term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised funds on
short term basis and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

_—=={g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us,the Company has not raised loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting under
clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any moneys, during the reporting period, by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments) or further public
offer and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally
convertible) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed or reported during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xi) (a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) No report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c)To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an internal audit system
as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit and hence reporting under clause
3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.

(b) The Company has not conducted Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

of India and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
A RSSO

inion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no Core Investment
%qmba (j ) within the Group and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx) In our opinion and based on our examination, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. (835725
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our report to
the Members of IFIN Securities Finance Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial controls under clause (i) of sub - section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IFIN Securities Finance Limited (“the
Company") as at March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

== pany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
//’-;r\/,_ regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
/;‘“;ﬁ purpeses\in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
r;’ :'-,, & e_dh@hc orting includes those palicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
l\%\ 0 f8Eso a‘lgl’ detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0035728
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Annexure “C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (h) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of IFIN Securities Finance Limited of even date)

Directions under S.143(5) of the Companies Act,2013

Directions Impression/Comments

1) Whether the company has system in place to | The company has system in place to process all the
process all the accounting transactions through IT | accounting transactions through IT system using tally
system? If yes, the implications of processing of | accounting software.

accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial | The main activity is accounting for interest income
implications, if any, may be stated. earned from clients for loans against shares and
margin funding which are extracted from Miles
Software and loan against mutual funds is extracted
from Dhanlap software (third party software) which are
updated in the tally accounting software.

In respect of payroll related data, based on the files
received from payroll department entries are uploaded
periodically / monthly in the respective ledger accounts
in the tally accounting software.

Based on the verification carried out by us during the
course of our audit we have not come across any
discrepancies in processing of accounting transactions
outside the IT systems which has a significant
implication on the integrity of accounts.

2) Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver / write off of debts / loans / | As per the information and explanations given to us,
interest etc. made by a lender due to the company's | the Company has not taken any borrowings and hence
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact | not commented upon.

may be stated whether such cases are properly
accounted for ?

3) Whether fund received / receivable for specific
schemes from central / state agencies were properly
accounted for /utilized as per its term and conditions?

The company is a Non-Banking Financial Company
registered with RBI and no funds are received from any
government agency for specific schemes,

List the cases of deviation.
For Sanjiv Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0035725
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IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED
AUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023
CIN:U65991TN1989G0OI017792
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
ASSETS
Note . As at As at
Particulars No 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
i (Audited) (Audited)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 135.09 156.78
Bank balances other than above 2 1,115.00 869.00
Loans 3 1,351.25 826.14
Investments 4 254.00 1,021.48
Other Financial Assets 5 39.08 16.52
Non - Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 38.08 28.44
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3.38 -
Property,Plant and Equipment 7 2.16 2.93
Other Intangible Assets 8 9.23 6.63
Other non - financial assets 1.78 2.17
Total Assets 2,949.05 2,930.09
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Note As at As at
Particulars No 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
: (Audited) (Audited)
LIABILITIES
Financia! Liabilities
Payables
(I) Trade Payables - -
(IT) Cther Payables 9
(i) total outstanding dues of micro i .
enterprises and small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and 10.18 7.72
small enterprises
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities {Net) 10 - 14.59
Provisions 11 3.58 6.93
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) ] 4.38
Equity
Equity Share capital 12 3,001.00 3,001.00
Other Equity 13 (65.71) (104.53)
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,949.05 2,930.08
Summary of significant accounting policies 25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financia! statements
For Sanjiv Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Req.No.003572S

C —

S Karpag m’
Managing Director
DIN:09755388

‘/KV Pﬁshparaj
Chief Financial Officer

CA K Rajesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.235691

Place : Chennai
Date : 11th May, 2023

Ramkumay Srinivasan

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IFIN Securities FinaQiajnited

-

Director
DIN:01175498

‘m‘i.
Sanjana Chhabra
Company Secretary

Membership No.A49167



IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Registered Office: Continental Chambers, 3rd Floor, 142, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam,Chennai ~ 600034

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended 31st March 2023
CIN:U65991TN1989G0I017792

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note Year ended (Audited) | Year ended (Audited)
Particulars No W )
* 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I |Revenue From Operations o
Interest income including processing fees 14 106.55 102.49
Net gain on fair value changes 15 - -
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 16 - -
Others 17 2.25 0.18
Total Revenue From Operations 108.80 102.67
1T |Other Income 18 126.65 141.69
III |Total Income (I+II) 235.45 244.36
Finance costs 19 = 3
Commission expenses 20 13.20 3.78
Net loss on fair value changes 21 18.89 52.54
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category = =
Impairment on financial instruments 22 1143 (2.83)
Employee benefits expenses 23 43.04 63.27
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7&8 1.77 3.21
Other expenses 24 114.21 81.20)
IV |Total expenses (IV) 202.54 201.17
vV |Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 3291 43,19
VI |Exceptional items - -
VII |Profit / (loss) before tax (V - VI) 3291 43.19
VIII |Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 10,13 2346
(2) Deferred tax (7.68) {11.78)
(3) Short/(Excess) Provision of Tax of earlier years (0.19) 0.87
(4) MAT Credit Entitlement (8.38) -
IX |Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII - VIII) 39.03 30.63
X |Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations - -
X1 |Tex expense of discontinued operations 4 “
XII |Profit / (loss) for the period from discontinuing operations (after tax) (X - XI) -
X1 |Profit / (loss) for the period (IX+XII) 39.03 30.63
XIV |Other Comprehensive Income - -
A(i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (0.29) (0.35)
A(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.08 0.09
Subtotal (A) (0.22) (0.27)
B(i)Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
B(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit ar Loss - -
Subtotal (B) # =
Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (0.22) (0.27)
XV Total Comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising 38.82 30.37
Profit (loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period) " ’
XVI |Earings Per share (for the continuing Operations)
Basic (Rs.) v 1.30 1.02
Diluted (Rs.) v 1.30 1.02
XVII |Earings Per share (for the discontinuing Operations)
Diluted (Rs.) %
XVIII |Earings Per share (for the continuing and discontinuing Operations)
Basic (Rs.) v 1.30 1.02
Diluted (Rs.) v 1.30 1.02
Summary of significant accounting policies 25

The accompanyinag notes are an intearal part of the financial statements

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No.0035225

.

CA K Rajesh J
Partner
Membership No.236691

Place : Chennai
Date : 11th May, 2023

Managing Director
DIN:D9755388

AV Pi}shparaj
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IFIN Securities Finance Limited
]
S Karpagam' /'

Ramkyfnar Srinivasan
Director
DIN:01175498

Sanjana Chhabra

Company Secretary
Membership No.A49167




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2023

CIN:U65991TN1989G0I1017752

{Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

: For the year ended For the year ended
Patticuinte 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A|CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit before tax as per P&L a/c 32.91 43,19
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 1.77 3.21
Loss an sale of Asset D.09 -
Provisian for dimunition in value of Trade Investments 18.89 52.54
Gain in fair value of Trade Investments : -
Loan Impairment provisions / (Write-back) 11.43 (2.83)
Capital gains on sale of Mutual funds (62.14) (89.26)
(29.96) (36.34)
Operating Profit before adjustment for financial
2 2,95 6.85
and non- financial assets
Adjustments for changes in Financial and Non-
Financial Instruments
{Increase) / Decrease in Loans (536.54) (186.31)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assels (22.56) 10.68
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non - Financlal Assets 0.39 2.02
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Payables 2.46 (17.83)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (3.64) (3.77)
(559.89) (195.21)
Cash Generated from Operation before tax (556.94) (188.36)
Direct taxes payments (25.79) (2.87)
Net cash from Operating Activities (582.73) (191.23)
B|CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets (3.69) (11.43)
(Purchase) [ Sale of Investment 810.73 405.01
Bank deposits (246.00) (175.00;
Net Cash used in / raised from Investing 561.04 218.58
Activities
C|CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in  Borrowings - -
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (21.69) 27.35
Dpening Cash and Cash Equivalents 156.78 129.43
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 135.09 156.78
Increase [ Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalent (21.69) 27.35

Summary of signi?icant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No.003572S

B

CA K Rajesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.236691

Place : Chennai
Date : 11th May, 2023

S

S Karpagam
Managing Director
DIN:09755388

/- A \f\i’-_l_lshparaj
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IFIN Securities Finance Limited

-\

Ramkumat Srinivasan
Director
DIN:01175498

Yot
Sanjana Chhabra
Company Secretary

Membership No.A49167
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IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 1 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Cash in hand 0.03 0.00
(ii) Balances with Banks

- Current Accounts 35.06 26.78

- Fixed Deposits 100.00 130.00

Total 135.09 156.78

Note # 2 - Bank Balances other than above

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Bank balances other than above
(i) Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than three

months

1,115.00

869.00

Total

1,115.00

869.00
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IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 5 - Other Financial Assets

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat o
31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022

Other Financial Assets
Advances to Staff 0.16 0.46
Intere;t A'ccrued but not due on Fixed 29.78 13.22
deposits with Banks
Security deposit with CDSL 1.50 1.50
Other Advances 1.25 1.25
Interest accrued on Loans 0.16 0.09
Receivable from revenue authority 6.23 -

Total 39.08 16.52

Note # 6 - Current Tax Assets (Net)

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asal AsalL
31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022

Advance tax and tax deducted at
source net of provision:
FY 2012-13 5.37 5.37
FY 2011-12 4.66 4.66
FY 2015-16 7.00 7.00
FY 2019-20 4.26 4.26
FY 2020-21 - 7.15
FY 2022-23 16.79 -

Total 38.08 28.44




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED
Notes # 7 & 8 - Property, Plant and Equipment & Other Intangible Assets

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets

Particulars Office Computers | Sub Total (A) Software Sub Total (B) | Grand Total (A)+(B)
Equipments
As at April 01, 2021 0.56 2.36 2,92 12.60 12.60 15.52
i Additions during the year 0.00 4.35 4.35 7.08 7.08 11.43
: Deletions during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
g Transfers/Adjustments 1.03 -1.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
fé ™~
E As at March 31, 2022 1.60 5.67 7.27 19.68 19.68 26.95
"
g
o Additions during the year 0.00 0.43 0.43 3.27 3.27 3.70
™ - 5
~ Deletions during the year /
& |witenoft 0.65 0.00 0.65 0.00 0.00 0.65
3 Transfers/Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
As at Mar 31, 2023 0.94 6.09 7.04 22,95 22.95 30.00
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Tangible Assets Intangible Assets
Particulars Office Computers | sub Total (A) Software Sub Total (B) | Grand Total (A)+(B)
Equipments
- 0.53 1.03 1.57 12.60 12.60 14,17
i Charge for the year 0.08 2.69 2.76 0.45 0.45 3.21
~ i 4 &
s Lieletions during te yearf 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
o written off
c 8 Transfers/Adjustments 0.77 -0.77
:‘g Transfers/Adjustments 1.38 2.95 4,33 13.05 13.05 17.38
g
o
a Charge for the year 0.04 1.05 1.10 0.67 067 1.77
M Deletions during the year /
™~
i written off 0.55 0.00 0.55 0.00 0.00 0.55
§ Transfers/Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers/Adjustments 0.87 4.00 4.88 13.72 13.72 18.60
£ Net Block
[¥]
o
[
5 As at March 31, 2022 0.22 2.72 2.94 6.63 6.63 9.57
= As at Mar 31, 2023 0.07 2.09 2.16 9,23 9.23 11.40




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED
Other Financial Liabilities

Note # 9 Other Payables

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars e haat
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Statutory remittances 1.98 1.46
Creditors for expenses 4.08 4.34
Credit balances in loan accounts 1.90 1.92
Others - Processing fees received in advance - -
Others - Interest received in advance 2.22 0.00
Total 10.18 7.72

Note # 10 - Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Asat As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Provision net of advance tax and tax

deducted at source:

- FY 2020-21 - -

- FY 2021-22 - 14.59

- FY 2022-23 - -
Total - 14.59

Note # 11 Provisions

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Raas Asat
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Leave Encashment 2.23 1.03
Provision for Bonus 0.20 0.16
Provision for Gratuity 1.15 0.59
Provision for expenses - 5.15
Total 3.58 6.93




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 12- Equity Share Capital

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Particulars

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 59,75,500 5975.50 59,75,500 5975.50
Preference Shares 24,500 24.50 24,500 24.50
Total 60,00,000 6000.00 60,00,000 6000.00
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 30,01,000 3001.00 30,01,000 3001.00
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 30,01,000 3001.00 30,01,000 3001.00
Total 30,01,000 3001.00 30,01,000 3001.00
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year 30,01,000 3001.00 30,01,000 3001.00
Shares Issued during the year - 0.00 - 0.00
Shares bought back during the year - 0.00 - 0.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 30,01,000 3001.00 30,01,000 3001.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

No. of Shares held

9% of Holding

No. of Shares held

% of Holding

IFCI Financial Services Limited (Holding
Company)

30,00,994

99.99

30,00,994

99.99

Xy




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 13 - Other Equity

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Capital Reserve 2.51 251
Securities Premium Reserve - -
Capital Redemption Reserve 4.50 4.50
Statutory Reserve 112.12 104.31
Debenture Redemption Reserve - -
Share Options Outstanding Account % #
General Reserve 25.16 25.16
Remeasurement Reservce -OCl 2.05 2.27
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - ¥
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference - -
Retained Earnings (212.06) (243.28)

Total (65.71) (104.53)

X




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 14 - Interest Income

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31.03.23

For the year ended 31.03.22

On Financial On:ma:smal On Financial | On Financial On:magcml
Particulars Assets s Assets Assets g
classified at classified at
measured at . Total measured at | measured at . Total
: fair value . g fair value
Amortised through fair value Amortised Shionah
Cost 3 g through OCI Cost g
profit or loss profit or loss
Interest income
(i} Interest on loans including
Processing Fees 106.55 5 106.55 102.49 102.49
(i) Interest income from investments & = E 4 _
(iii) Other interest income 2 e . - |
Total 106.55 - 106.55 102.49 102.49




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 15 Net gain on fair value changes
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the Year ended
31.03.2023

For the Year ended
31.03.2022

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio -

-Investments

-Derivatives

-Others
(i) On financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss

(B)Others (to be specified)

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
Fair Value Changes :

-Realised

-Unrealised

Note # 16 Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost

category

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31.03.2023

For the Year ended
31.03.2022

Financial Instrument written off in earlier year now
recovered

Total

Note # 17 Others

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31.03.2023

For the Year ended
31.03.2022

Pre-closure Income 0.68 0.07
Other Income on Loans 1.57 0.11
Part Payment charges 0.00 =
Sundry customer credit balances written back - =
Provisions for standard asset - -

Total 2.25 0.18

Note # 18 Other Income

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Bt For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Interest on Income tax refund 0.43 0.54
Interest on Fixed Deposit with Banks 52.33 41.91
Profit on sale of Investments (Net) 62.14 89.25
Misc. Income 11.48 9.44
Interest income on Loans 0.27 0.55
Total 126.65 141.69




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 19 - Finance Cost
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
On Financial On Financial
Particulars Liabilities Liabilities
measured at Total measured at Total
Amortised Amortised
Cost Cost

Finance cost
(i) Interest on deposits - 2 & -
(ii) Interest on borrowings 4 A 5 &
(iii) Interest on debt securities - - -
(iv) Interest on subordinated
liabilities

(v) Other interest expenses y & 5 .
(vi) Bank charges % 2 - -
(vii) Other finance costs - - =

Total - - -

Note # 20 - Commission expenses

(Amount in Rs, In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particul For the Year ended For the Year ended

REDERR 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(i) Commision to Stockholding

Corporation of India (SHCIL) 3.29 ) 2.65 i

(i) Others 9.91 - S E -
Total 13.20 - 3.78 -

A




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 21 - Net loss on fair value changes

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year | For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(A) Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
(i) On trading portfolio -
-Investments 18.89 52.54
-Derivatives - -
-Others = -
(i) On financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss = F
(B)Others (to be specified) - -
Total Net loss on fair value changes 18.89 52.54
Fair Value Changes :
-Realised - -
-Unrealised 18.89 52.54
18.89 52.54

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes




IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED

Note # 22- Impairment on financial Instruments

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31.03.23 For the year ended 31.03.22
. On Financial | On Financial On Financial | On Financial
Particulars instruments | instruments instruments | instruments
measured at | measured at Total measured at | measured at Total
fair value Amortised fair value Amortised
through OCI Cost through OCI Cost
a. Loans - 11.43 11.43 - -2.83 -2.83
b. Investments - - - -
c. Others - =
Total - 11.43 11.43 - -2.83 -2.83
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IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED
Note # 23 Employee Benefit Expenses

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(a)Salaries and benefits of the Managing Director who Is on
deputation from Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd 10.52
(SHCIL) reimbursed (including taxes) to SHCIL
Gratuity & Superannuation reimbursed to SHCIL (inclu, GST) 2 2.65
(b) Salaries and incentives to other employees 36.78 45.62
(c) Contributions to -
Provident fund & Employee State Insurance 1.43 1.50
Staff Welfare Expenditure 2.73 1.22
Provision for Gratuity 0.27 0.78
Provision for Leave Encashment 1.78 0.93
Labour welfare & Professional Tax 0.05 0.05
Total 43.04 63.27

Note # 24 Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Advertisement & Business promotion expenses 0.21 0.08
Annual maintenance charges 0.17 0.14
Auditor's fees and expenses 4.75 4.82
Bank Charges 0.12 0.05
Books & Periodicals 0.09 0.04
Depository charges 0.01 0.00
Directors Sitting Fees 1.47 1.18
Electricity Charges 0.45
Information technology expenses 4.61 6.51
Insurance Charges 2.36 1.83
Interest on TDS and Income tax 0.77 0.00
Legal and Professional Charges 5.52 2.80
Miscellaneous expenses 0.06 0.23
Postage & courier expenses 0.01 0.00
Pooja Expenses 0.15 -
Printing and Stationery 0.23 0.03
Professional & Consultation fees 8.02 4.56
Loss on Sale of Asset 0.10 -
Rates And Taxes 0.31 0.22
Rent - 1.27
Repairs and Office Maintenance 0.12 0.71
Sharing of expenses 7295 54.71
Stamp Charges - 0.03
Telephone expenses - 0.36
Tour, travel & Conveyance 2.54 1.15
Training expenses 0.42 0.03
CGST & SGST ineligible ITC 8.67

=HIGST ineligible ITC 0.55 -
AN Total 114.21 81.20




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO AND FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF
PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2023

FIRWY A0 MM A A S N, — e —m—  —

1.Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment

(Amount in Rs. In Lakh

s unless otherwise stated)

For the Year

For the Year

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 1.10 2.76
Amortization of Intangible Assets 0.67 0.45
TOTAL 1.77 3.21

2. Payment to Auditors*

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
a) As Auditor 2.80 2.80
b) For taxation matters 0.10 0.10
c) For company law matters - -
d) For other services - 0.58
e) For reimbursement of expenses - -
TOTAL 2.90 3.47

* payment to auditors is exclusive of GST

3, Disclosure in related to Undisclosed Income

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).




IFIN Securities Finance Limited

Note # 25
A. Company Background

TFIN Securities Finance Limited (“the Company”) is a non-deposit taking Non-
Banking Financial Services Company- (NBFC-LC) incorporated and domiciled in
India and governed by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Tt is registered with the
Reserve Bank of India as a Loan Company. The name of the company was
changed to IFIN Securities Finance Limited vide Certificate of Registration dated
26th August 2013 from erstwhile name of Narayan Sriram Investments Private
Limited. The Company’s registered office is situated at Continental Chambers,
31d Floor, 142, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034 Tamil
Nadu, India.

The company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans against
shares, margin funding and Mu tual Funds.

B. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the
accounting policies for all the periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods or services. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the

measurement date.




Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share- based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 116.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The company has threshold limit for materiality based on the total amount of
loans outstanding.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 are presented in Indian
Rupees and all values are rounded in Lakhs, except where otherwise indicated.
The financial statements were authorised and approved for issue by the Board cf
Directors on May 11, 2023.

B. Use of estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment are reviewed on an ongoing basis.




The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

' S.No | Particulars - | Note No.
L, Revenue recognition using effective interest rate 25(C)
2. Impairment of loans -Expected credit loss 25 (L)(i)

C. Revenue recognition
Iriterest Income on ILoan against shares

Interest earnad on loans against shares (financial asset) is recognized based on the
effective interest raie GIR) miethod as per Ind AS 109 & 32, and is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future repayments of principal and interest through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset i.e the amortised cost of the financial asset, before adjusting for any credit loss
allowance which are applicable for Stage 1 (Performing) and Stage 2 (Under-
performing) assets. For Stage 3 (Non-performing) assets, expected interest rate is
calcuated on the amortized cost less expected credit loss adjustment. Refer note 22
for details on imipairraent.

Frocessing fee received by the company relating to the creation or acquisition of a
financial asset ic considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of a
financial ingtrument and is treated as an adjusimeit to the effective interest rate or

L3

amortised uniformly over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

Iaterest income on margin funding

Considering the r.ature and complexity of margin tracding, it is not possible to ap iy
the effective interest rate method and so interest has been conscidered on 2 time
provortion basis taking into account the amount outstending and the rate
apnlicable.

Tnterest income oa Loan against mutual funids

interesi earned on loans against rottual fuinds {(financial asset) is recognized based
on the effective interest rate FIR) method as per Ind AS 109 & 32, and is the rate
that exactly discounts the esiimated future repayments of principal and interest
hreugh the expected life of dhe financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
Saencial asset 1.¢ the amortised cost of the financial asset, before adjusting for any
credit loes allowance which are applicable for Stage 1 (Performing) and Stage 2
{Under-perforraing) assets. For Stage 3 (Non-pexforming) assets, expected inferest
raie is caleulated on the amortized cost less expected credit loss adjustment. Refer
note 22 for details on impairment.

Processing fee and othier documentation tharges received by the company relating
o \, © the creation or acquisition of a financiz) asset is considered an integral part of the
;{\\eﬁ'ective interest rate of a financial instrument and is teeated as an adjustment tc the

—
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effective interest rate or amortised uniformly over the lifetime of the financial
instrument.

The interest income as per the EIR method is calculated based on the materiality
level and as per the discretion of the management.

Dividend Income

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when

(a) The company’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;

(b) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the company; and

(c) The amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest on fixed deposits

Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized in time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding.

Miscellaneous income

All other inceme is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty
in the ultimate realization/ collection.

D. Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pericd in which they are
a & )

11

wcurred.

E. Employee benefits

Chzpy

(a

) Defined contribution plan:

The Company’s Provident Fund Scheme and other statutory funds are defined
contributicn plans and the company’s contribution paid/ payable is recognized as
expense in Statement of Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service. The company has contributed Rs.1.43 lakhs (FY 2021-
22 - Rs.1.49 iakhs) to provident fund, which has been charged to Statement of
Profit & L.oss.

(b) Defined benefit plan

(i) Gratuity

The liahility recognized in the halance sheet in respect of defired benefit gratuity

o\ /
€2\
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benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined based an actuarial valuation

using the projected unit credit method.

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows:

Ind AS 19 Disclosures:

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Amounts in Balance sheet 31st March’ 22 | 31% March’ 23

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 0.59 1.15
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit 0.59 115
Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit) - -
Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(b) - g
Liability / (Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.59 | 1.15

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22
Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss To To

31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-23 |
Current Service Cost B 0.64 0.22
Interest Cost 0.14 0.04
Expected Return on Plan Assets . -
Past Service Cost ) - -
(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/
Total Expense/(Income) included in "Employee Benefit 0.78 0.27

Expense"

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22
(OCI) To To
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-23
Amount recognized in OCL, Beginning of Period (3.39) (3.03)
Remeasurements due to :
Effect of Change in financial assumptions [C] (0.32) 0.03
Effect of Change in demographic assumptions [D] - 0.36
Effect of experience adjustments [E] 0.67 (0.10)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (C+ D +E) 035 0.29 |
Return on plan assets (excluding interest) - -
Total remeasurements recognized in OCI 035 0.29
Amount recognized in OCI, End of Period (3.03) (2.74)

&




(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Change in Present Value of Benefit Obligation 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22
during the Period To To
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23
Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period 2.04 0.59
Current Service Cost 0.64 0.22
Interest Cost 0.14 0.04
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - -
| Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 0.35 0.29
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture - -
Actual Benefits Paid ) (2.58) =]
Past Service Cost B - -
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - i
Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments - -
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - -
Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period 0.59 1.15

Additional Disclosures (Cash Flows):

Sensitivity Analysis

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-23
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) i 1.15
Sensitivity Analysis 31-Mar-23
_ Decrease Increase
Discount Rate 1.18 112
Impact of increase/ decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.04% -2.88%
Salary Growth Rate 55 1.19]
Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO -3.01% 3.15%
L
Expected Cash Flows | 31-Mar-23 |
Year1 - 0.14
Year 2 0143
Year 3 - - 0.15
Year 4 0.14
Year 5 0.14
Year 6 to 10 052




Actuarial Assumptions:

The principal assumptions used for reporting period 31 March, 2022 and 31
Maxch, 2023 are summarized in the table below. The assumptions as at the balance
sheet date are used to determine the defined benefit obligation & employee

benefit expense.

(e : - -
Financial As
inancial Assumptions ‘ 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 !
Discount Rate N P 735% | - 7.15% |
| Salary Fscalation Rate (% for next year 3.00%
) - and 3.00% thereafter | )
| Expected Return on Assets - 0.00% B 0.00%
Demograpﬁic Assumptions B 31-Mar-22 ] 3i-Mar-23

Mortality Table *

el b i i S R N R s S

w‘ﬂ\hﬂ 1drm\’V n,. Rate :

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Ult.

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

0.10%

12%

o ]
Retir ement ;“1 Age :

60 vears

60) years |

G

Timis ng Related J&wsmnptmm

' Time of Retirement

:

Immediately on a(hsw'ng normal |

rphrer'“ -ni

m_ frequency

Sa]

ary Incre

w ]'\.JOI--I-'\-i:
Mortality (2012-14) Ult. are given

in the table below.

Once a year

tv Kates: Repfespntativc mortality rates from Indienn Assured Lives

i_' C Age l Rate [ Age —'“"'"_"REE“_—"‘
EL_ ___f?___ | 60009240 | 5() _ 0.004;360 __‘
g [ 0.0009310 85 0.0075130 t
i'_ TRy T Tamearo | 60 00111620 |
TR T 00012020 | B -
|L_ 46 00016800 )
" R (Y




(ii) Compensated Absences

The company employees are entitled to 24 days of earned leave per year, out of
this 15 days leave standing to the credit of the employee at the end of the calendar
year will be paid as leave salary and calculated on the gross pay. This balance is
allowed to be accumulated.

The Company provides benefit of compensated absences under which unavailed
leave are allowed to be accumulated to be availed in future. The compensated
absences comprises of both vesting and non-vesting benefit. Long term
compensaied absence costs are provided for based on actuarial valuation using
the project unit credit method.

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows:

Ind AS 19 disclosures
(Amount in Rs. In Lakiis unless otherwise stated)
Amounts in Balance Sheet 31-03-22 | 31-03-23
“befinzi_Benefit‘O_Eligation (DBO) 1.03 223 |
Fair value of pEEAssets ________ T o |
Funded Status - (Surpius)/Deficit - 18] 223 |
Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit) i W w__i
| Unrecognized Asset due to Limit in Para 64(B) - | o=
i Liability / {(Asset) Recognized in the Baiance Sheet L, 1.03) 223 |
| 31-Mar-21 | 31-03-22
! Amount Recognized i Statement of Profit & Loss To To
31-Mar-22 | 31-03-23
| Current Service Cost . 193 026 |
| Interest Cost i 0.08 005 :
Expected Retwrn on Plan Assels - «f -
| Past Service Cost T Wl
“Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) D T
_(Eéinj_/‘?..oss due to _ T
Settlements,/ Curtailments/ Acquisitions/ Divestiiures i

Unrecognized Asset due to Limit in Para 54(B) | -

——— — ———— e ————

 Total Expense/(Income) included in-%mployee | 093 178
Benefit Expense" !




(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31-03-21 31-03-22
Change in Present value of Benefit Obligation during To To
sk 31-03-22 | 31-03-23
Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period 2.35 1.03
Current Service Cost 1.95 0.26
Interest Cost 0.08 0.05
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - :
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (1.08) 1.47
Acquisition/ Business Combination/Divestiture - -
Actual Benefits Paid (2.26) (0.58)
Past Service Cost - -
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - -
Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments - -
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - -
Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period 1.03 2.22

Additional Disclosures (Cash Flows):

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stateﬂ)‘

31-03-23
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 223
Sensitivity Analysis 31-03-23

Decrease Increase

Discount Rate 2.29 217
Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO 2.79% -2.65%
Salary Growth Rate 2.16 2.29
Impact of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO -2.76% 2.89%

(Amount in Rs. In La

khs unless otherwise stated)

Expected Cash Flows 31-03-23
Year1 0.35
Year 2 032
Year 3 0.29
Year 4 B 0.26
Year 5 0.24
Year 6 to 10 0.89

N



Actuarial Assumptions:

The principal assumptions used for reporting period 31 March, 2022 and 31 March,
2023 are summarized in the table below. The assumptions as at the balance sheet
date are used to determine the defined benefit obligation & employee benefit

expense.
Financial Assumptions 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23
Discount Rate 7.35% 7.15%
0% for next
Salary Escalation Rate year and 3.00% 3.00%
thereafter
| Expected Return on Assets 0.00% 0.00%
Demographic Assumptions 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Table * Mortality (2012-14) Ult. | Mortality (2012-14)
Ult.
Withdrawal Rate 0.10% 12.00%
| Retirement Age 60 years 60 years |
Timing Related Assumptions:
Time of Retirement Immediately on achieving
normal retirement
Salary Increase frequency Once a year

* Mortality Rates: Representative mortality rates from Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Ult. are given in the table below.

Age Rate Age | Rate .
20 0.0009240 50 0.0044360
25 0.0009310 55 T 0.0075130 |
30 0.0009770 60 0.0111620
35 0.0012020 o
40 0.0016800
45 0.0025790 N




F. Incomie taxee & Deferred tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or divectly in equity respectively.

Curvent {ax is deterrnined on taxable profits for the year chargeabie to fax iu
wecordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax ~ Act,
1961 including other applicable tax Jaws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted. The Company has made provision for current tax for Rs.10.13/ -Lalhs

Juring the current year.

Deferred inx is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in e computation of texable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generatly
recognised for uil taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised foi ali dedrn-tible temporary differences to the extent that it is prokable
thei taxakie profits wiil be available against which those deductible temporary
differences car: be utiised. Such deferred tex assets and liabilities are not recognised
v difference atvises from the initial recognition (other than m a

if the temporai
business comination) of assets and Habilities in a transaction that affects neither the
Lie
L1t

taxable profit nor the acconnting pre
Movement of deferred tax liability from beginniug to end of financial year is as follows:

{Arount in Rs. In Laichs unless otherwise stated)

Asat | Provided | As at Provided | Asat
Particulars April §1, | previous March 31, | current Rarch 31,
) | vear 12022 _year 2623
Dejerred tax Liabibty: N S
A, Belating to '

Pronenty, Plant & 0.09 | 002 0.11 031! 0.42

|

|

] I
B. Relatiupg 1o |
Acttite: Cain '
from detined \
benefit plan :
recognised in !
|

|

|

|

I

|

0.85 ! (0.09) 0.7

OCi

C. Relaiing to
carlier years
recognized
during the year

16.27 - 16.27




Total Deferred Tax - T - | |
Liability 17.21 (0.07) l 17.15 0.23 17.38
Deferred Tax Asset:
A. Items disallowed
u/s 43B of the
Income Tax Act
1961
B. Investments I
:aaﬁ.:sz:ciaé;l 035 (1332  (13.67) @7 | (18.45)
Profit or Loss

(0.29) 0.82 0.52 (0.39) 0.13

& g&‘i‘sm for (0.32) 0.71 0.39 Q83 @249

{0.97) (11.79) (12.76) I (2.32) (20.76)

Total Deferred Tax

Asset

Deferired Tax

Liabilities/ 16.24 - 4.38 - (3.38)

(Assets)(net) l ) -

| Tax (Income)/Expense | |

' during the period |

| recognized in: o L 4'
|
|

i ata _femem_‘i; ofit | -] s .
i o1 et | 77 ) (7.68)

| and Loss

'_.
| 1l ‘Other Ceprehensive
| incoine |

| il Pehmﬂd Fammgs =4 - - - | . .

Deferred tax asscts have not been rocognized in respect of business ioss an id unabsorbed
depreciation aggregating to Rs. 884.34 _akna as at March 31,2022 (March 31,2022: Rs. $04.57
lakhs), where it is not probable thaf enufficient taxable income will be available in the future
against which such deferred tax can be realized in the nonmai course of business of the
company.

The amount and expiry dates, if any, of unutilized tax losses and deductible temporary
differences for which no d=ferred tax is recognized 1n the balance sheet are given below:

: Easticyless __._H______YE‘_‘?.”_‘f ‘“%L“":, 1 " AmountinLakhs |
Cary forward business loss [ A\ 200425 J o me
I | Carry forward business loss AY 2028-29 T TRorar

G. Property plant & equipment

Proverty plant & equipment comprising of effice equipiment and computers are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Xt




Depreciation/ amortisation:

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight line method in the manner
prescribed under Schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, and changes if any has been accounted on a prospective basis as changes in
accounting estimates. In order to maintain uniformity in accounting policies
adopted by group companies, the company has changed the depreciation method
from written down value to straight line.

The depreciation calculated under straight line amounted to Rs.1.77 Lakhs which
has been charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current financial year.

Items of Plant, Property and Equipment is fully depreciated where the management
estimates the useful life is less than 12 months and charged to the statement of profit
and loss.

H. Intangible assets - Computer software

Intangible assets comprising of computer software is recognized if they are
separately identifiable and the Company controls the future economic benefits
arising out of them. All other expenses on intangible items are charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

Amortisation:

Amortization is recognized so as to write off the cost of intangible assets less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, and changes if any has been accounted on a prospective basis
as changes in accounting estimates.

1. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
? ¢ Sits carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

¢ value of money is material). \Q‘




J. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

K. Bank balances other than above

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have a
maturity of more than three months from the date of acquisition.

L. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provision of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method if
both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if

both of the following conditions are met:
“(a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved

3 koth collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

\
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(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Financial assets i.e. derivative instruments and investments in instruments other
than equity of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates) are subsequently
measured at fair value. Such financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any gains (e.g. any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset) or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss and
included in the “Other Income”. Investments in equity instruments & mutual funds
are classified as fair value through profit or loss.

[mpairment of financial assets:

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired when one or more events that may
have a detrimental effect on estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred.
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment
loss on financial assets (i.e. the shortfall between the contractual cash flows that are
due and all the cash flows (discounted) that the Company expects to receive.

Expected Credif Loss (ECL)

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all
contraciual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls).
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows
by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument through the expected
life of those financial instruments.

The Company measures the loss allowance for the financial instruments at an
amcunt equal to the lifetime expected ciedit Tosses if the credit risk on those
financial insiruments has increased significantly since initial recognition. if the credit
risk on financial instruments las not increased significantly since initial recognitior,
the Company measures the loss allowance ftor those financial instruments at an
amount equal to 12 month expected cradit iosses. The twelve months expected credit
losses are portion of the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs
within 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are
predicted bevond the 12 months.

If the Comnpany measured loss allowance for the financial instruments at life timne
« expecied credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a



reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12 month
expected credit Josses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instruments instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make the assessment, the
Company compares the tisk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default vccurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost cr effort, that is indicative of
significant increase in credit risk since mitial recognition.

The company recognizes stages for recognition of expected credit loss on financial
instruments for which there has been significant increase in credit risk since imitial
recognition. The probability of default and loss given default have been measured
using past credit history, and forward looking credit risk estimations which may
include external credit vatings and'credit loss experiences of other peer companies
wherever applicabie.

i s b e

Stage | Category Days due since initial | Expected  credit
.y o recognition foss (ECL)
1 Performing 0-30 days or cash| 12 months ECL
E Margin  clause  not
4 | ____jinvoked as Stage 1 |
2 Under-perfoiming 31-9¢ daysor cash | Life time ECL

margin clause invoked
' and the client has paid
cash imargin

3 Non-performing Beyond 90 days or cash | Life time ECL
margin clause invoked
but the client has not
paid, erniity has suid
the security to the
extent of cash margin
shert fall o recover the

dues.

b i comi e e e s e

De-vecoonition of financinl assels

e ey

1 2 Fhe Company derecogrises a financial asset wien the contractual rights to the cash

el - 1 ‘ ; ; . N ) i
‘\{{;{L} s fram ihe asset expire, or when it fransfess the financial asset and substantially

_ai‘}‘?;ﬂ\;g risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, The company
iy ‘, o4 a b
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directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when it has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, if material.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The company removes a financial liability or a part of a financial liability from its
balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished—i.e when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number
of equity shares issued.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss
(interest and other finance cost associated) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

e Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Company; or

e Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Continued...
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Other Notes:
I. Contingent liabilities:

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account
and not provided for: NIL (FY 2021-22 - Rs.Nil).
ii) Other Contingent liabilities: NIL (FY 2021-22 - Rs. Nil).

1I. Remuneration to Auditors

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

: FY FY
Nature of Service 202223 | 2021-22
Statutory Audit Fee 2.00 2.00
For quarterly reporting 0.80 0.80
Tax Audit and Other Fees 0.10 0.68
GST 0.52 0.62
Total 3.41 4.09

[1I. The Company shares certain costs/service charges on a mutually agreed basis
with the holding company.

V. The company is primarily engaged in lending against equity shares, mutual funds
and margin funding for shares. As such there, are no separate reportable segments
as per IND AS 108.

V. Earnings Per Share

The Earning per Share (EPS) has been computed in accordance with the IND AS
33.
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
For the year | For the year
ended ended
31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022

Particulars

Net Profit / (loss) for the year available for

the equity shareholders (Before & after 39.03 30.63
extraordinary items) ] B
Nominal value per equity share 100 _ 100 |

Weighted Average No. of outstanding equity _

shares during the year - Basic & Diluted. AU SHL Al
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (Before &
after extraordinary items) in INR

Rs. 1.30 Rs. 1.02

ot




VI. Related Party Disclosure as per Ind AS 24

/
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(a) Ultimate Holding Company: TFCI Limited
(b) Holding Company: IFCI Financial Services ltd

(c) Fellow Subsidiaries: a) IFIN Commodities Limited
b) TFIN Credit Limited
¢) IFCI Factors Limited
d) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
e) IFCI Infrastructure Development Ltd
f) MPCON Limited
g) Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited

Note: Fellow Subsidiaries (c) to (g) given above are subsidiaries of ultimate Holding
Company, IFCI Limited.

(d) Key Management Personnel and relatives of suclt personnel:

Mrs. S Karpagam . Managing Director
Mr. AV Pushparaj . Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sanjana Chhabra : Company secretary

Relatives of Key Management Personnel : Nil

M
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(e) Transactions with Related Parties
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
1

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Holding /Subsidiary/ Fellow
Subsidiary Companies

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Managing Director’s
compensation, travel and
other reimbursements paid /
payable to Stockholding
Corporation of India Ltd
(SHCIL) including taxes

10.52

Shared office expenses
reimbursed to IFCI Financial
Services Ltd (IFIN) - Holding
Company

Salary deputation reimburszd
to IFCI Financial Services
Ltd(IFIN) -Holding Company

72.95

59.21

19.44

17.68

=

Salary deputation reimbursed
by IFCI Financial Services
Ltd(IFIN) -Holding Company

8.36

9.20

(@83

Comimission payable to IFIN
for customer referrais
(including taxes)

Commission payable to
SHCIL for customer referrals
(including taxes)

3.29

Sitting fees to Mr.Sanjay
Tanksale

1.25

Salary to KMP:

Mr. Siddarth Diwedi
Ms. Pragyan Shree
Ms. Sanjana Chhabra

1.09

233




Balance as at year end:

VIIL.

VIII.

IX.

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

| Asat As at
Nature Name of the party 31 March | 31 March
2023 2022
[FCI financial services Itd | --- L e
Commission Payable Stock %mldmg corporation 0.53 0.15
of India Itd )
Salary deputation ‘ . ;
SeTVICES 03 S
Payable (Reimbursed) IFCI financial services Itd 0.0
Professional and Stock holding corporation | ]
| consultation fee of India Itd
Note:

(a) The Company accounts for costs incurred by / on behalf of the Related Parties
based on the actual invoices / debit notes raised and accruals as confirmed by
such related parties.

(b) The Related Parties have confirmed to the Management that as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 there are no further amounts payable to / receivable from
them, other than as disclosed above.

(c) The transactions during the period are Inclusive of GST except Sr. No. 2,3 &4.
Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outflow

During the year, the company has spent a sum of Rs. Nil (FY 2021-22 - Rs. Nil) in
foreign exchange, towards expenses and asset purchases. There is no foreign
exchange income during the year.

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As per the information available with us, the Company does not deal with
vendors covered under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. Hence compliance and reporting in this regard does not arise.

Capital Management

The Company’s capital management is intended to maximize the return to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders for meeting the long-term and
shori-term goals of the Company. For the purpose of capital management, capital
includes issued equity capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company.
¥
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Categories of financial instruments

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Financial assets 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(a) Mandatorily measured:

(i) Equity & Mutual Fund investments 254.00 10.21

(ii) Derivative instruments designated in hedge - -

accounting Relationship
Measured at fair value through Other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)
(i) Equity investments - -
Measured at amortized cost

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 135.08 156.77
(b) Bank balances (Fixed deposits with bank) 1,115.00 869.00
(c) Loans (Gross) 1,380.05 843.51
(d) Other financial assets 39.08 18.69

Liquidity risk management

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities for funding the loans against shares, margin funding and mutual fund. The
ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors,
which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities as at 31st March 2023:
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Carrying | uptol 1-3 3-5 Mg
‘ than 5
Particulars amount year Years Years
years
Current financial liabilities: _
Other payables 8.19 8.19 - - -

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities as at 315t March 2022:
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Carrying | upto1l 1-3 3-5 Blone
. than 5
Particulars amount year Years Years
years
~—===Current financial liabilities: B

Vs -~ @ﬂ-\fé; payables 6.26 626 - - -
H""; 2\
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets

as at 315t March 2023:
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Carrying upto 1 1-3 3-5 More than

amount year years Years 5 years
Current
financial assets: i
Cash and cash 135.08 135.08
equivalents ] ] )
Bank balances
(Fixed deposits 1,115.00 765.00 350.00 - -
with bank)
Loans (Gross) 1,380.05 622.01 758.04 - - K
Other Financial 3908 3758 ) i 150
Assets

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets
as at 315t March 2022:

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

R Carrying upto 1 vear | 1-3 3-5 More than
amount years Years 5 years

Current

financial assets:

Cash and cash 156.77 156.77

equivalents | ] ] )

Bank balances

(Fixed deposits 869.00 320.00 549.00 - -

| with bank)

Loans (Gross) 843.51 669.75 173.76 - - |

Other Financial 18.69 1719 ) ) 150

Assets

X. Statutory Reserve

As per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is
required to create a reserve fund at a rate of 20% of the net profit after tax of the
Company every year. Considering the Profit after tax for the year ended 31 March
2023, Rs.7.81 Lakhs is transferred to the statutory reserve as required under
Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934.
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X1. Analytical Ratios:
(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)
(b) Tier [ CRAR
(c) Tier il CRAR

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Ratio Numerator | Denominator ‘ Current | Previous| % Reason
peiiod | period | variance | for
variance

|

| | (if above

: | 25%)
i

Capita! to rick-

2’9640{(€ 11673_31_5 177.16% 154_87?/0 2229 i" o7 MR
weighted |

(CRAR) N

Tier I CRAF. |
1
|

]

s

U1

(2]
[

293528 1,673.13 | 175.44% | 153.94%
2880 | 167313 | 172% | 0.92%

foe)
=
!

Tier I CRAR

i1 Additionad Regulatary Disclosures as per Schedule DY of Companies Act, 2013

1. Mo immmovable properiy are held in the name of the company

2. The Company does not have any investroen: property.

3. As per the Company's accounting poiicy, Property, Plant and Equiprnent
(including Right of Use Assets) and intangible assets are carriea at historical

= .

2ost (l2ss acouraniated depreciaiion & impairment, if any), hence the revaluation

related disclosures tequired as per Additional Regulatory Information of

Schedule i (revised) to the Companics Act, is not epplicable

4. The Compeny hes not granted Loans or Advances in the rature of loan to

promoters, Direciors, KMPs and the related pariies (As per Companies Act,

2013) which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or

period of repayments.

~o proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for

hoiding any Benami property undet the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)} Act,

1988 (45 of 1985) and ile rules made thereunder.

6. The Company has no sanciioned facilities from banks on the basis of security of
ciarreni assets. Hence, no periodic reiurns required to filed by the Company

it

1

with sach banks.
7. The Company has not been declared as @ Wilifui defaalter by any bank or
firancial instituticn or other lender in the financial vears ended March 31, 2023
& March 31, 2022
8., There are no transactions with the Companies whose name are strack off under
Section 248 of Tho Cainpanies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act,
1656 charing the year snded March 21, 2072,
All applicable cases where registraiion ol charges or satisfaction is required to
be filed with Registrar of Companies have been filed. No registration or
satisfaction is pending for the year ended Maich 31, 2023. \f




10. No scheme of arrangement has been approved by the competent authority in
terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries)
or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiary.

12. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies).
inciuding foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on

(b) behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

13. The Company has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency
transactions

Previous Year Figures:

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified/readjusted, wherever
necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.

XIII. Other Disclosure:

(a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other scurces or kind of funds) by the
Company tc or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Cormpany shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.




XIV. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / recast wherever necessary to
make them comparable with the current year figures.

XV. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees in Lakhs. Figures in bracket
represent previous year's figures.

For Sanjiv Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Directors of IFIN Securities Finance Limited
Firm Reg.No.0035725
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Partner // \ Director Director

S
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A’V Pushparaj Sanjana Chhabra
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.A49167

Place: Chennai
Date: 11-05-2023



Weighted Risk Assets
(Amount in Lakhs)
Weighted risk assets - On-Balance Sheet Percentage

items weight  Asset considered Weighted Risk assets
(i) Cash and bank balances including fixed
deposits and certificates of deposits with 0
banks 1,250.09 &
(i) Investments
(a) Approved securities [Except at (c) below] 0
(b) Bonds of public sector banks 20 - -

(c) Fixed deposits/certificates of deposits/ 100

bonds of public financial institutions =
(d) Shares of all companies and

debentures/bonds/commercial papers of all 100
companies and units of all mutual funds

254.00 254.00

(iii) Current assets
(a) Stock on hire (net book value) 100 - .
(b) Intercorporate loans/deposits 100 - -
(c) Loans and advances fully secured against
deposits held by the company itself 0
(d) Loans to staff 0 2 .
(e) Other secured loans and advances 100
considered good (aross) 1,380.05 1,380.05
(f) Bills purchased/discounted 100 - -
(g) Others (To be specified) 100 39.08 39.08
(iv) Fixed Assets (net of depreciation)
(a) Assets leased out (net book value) 100 -
(b) Premises 100 <
(c) Furniture & Fixtures 100 ) )
(v) Other assets
(a) Income tax deducted at source (net of 0
provision) g .
(b) Advance tex paid (net of provision) 0
(c) Interest due on Government securities 0
(d) Others (to be specified) 100 ) )
Total Weighted Risk Assets 1,673.13
Tier I capital = Equity + reserves & surplus 2,935.28
Tier I1
a. Provision on Standard Assets 28.80
Total of Tier I1 28.80
Total CapitaL Funds 2,964.08
CRAR 177.16%

Tier I 175.44%
Notes: Tier I1 1.72%

Others excludes prepaid expenses as pointed by RBI in its inspection report of February 2020
Loans and advances considered at Gross and ECL considered as Tier II

s




Disclosure Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Notification DNBS.200/CGM (PK)-2008 dated 1

August 2008
I Capital (in %)
As at 315 As at 315
Particulars Mar'2023 | Mar'2022
i | CRAR (%) 17716 154.87
ii | CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 175.44 153.94
iii | CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 1.72 0.92 |
iv | Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II - ¥
v | Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - )]

T1. Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particular Upto | Over1 |Over2 |Over3 |Over6 | Over |Over3 |Qver | Total ]
30/31 | Month | Month | Month | Month |1 years |5
Days |&upto | &upto | &upto|&up | Year&k | Month | years
2 3 6 tol upto |&up
Months | Months | Months | Year |3 to5
Years | Years
Deposits - | 100.00 -| 190.00 | 575.00 | 350.00 - | 1.50 | 1216.50
Advances 58.97 8.88 24,07 | 158.33 | 392.84 | 736.95 - - | 1380.05
Investments™* - - - - | 125.00 | 129.00 0.05 - 254.05
Borrowings - - - - - - - -
Foreign - - - - - - - -
Currency
Assets
Foreign - - - - - - - -
Currency
Liabilities

** Investments are made in mutual funds which have been presented based on the budget loan
requirement of the funds and will be liquidated based on the actual requirement of funds.

X



I11. Exposures

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Current | Previous
Year Year
Category 2022-23 | 2021-22
a) | Direct Exposure
i | Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented Nil Nil
ii | Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
estate
( Office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose
commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-
tenanted Nil Nil
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and
construction. B
iii | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities Nil Nil
( MBS ) and other securitised exposures
A | Residential Nil Nil |
B | Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil
Nil Nil

'l"-dt'f’:i]ﬁikfjbsgl'e to Real Estate Sector




Exposure to Capital Market

- (Amount in Lakhs)

Current I'
Year
2022-23

| Previous
Year
2021-22 |

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt

II

Advance against shares/bonds/debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOS/ESOPS),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds

I

Advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security

1380.05

843.51

IV-

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured
by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds ie where the primary security
other than shares/convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity

Secured and unsecured advances to stock brokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stock brokers and
markets makers

VI

Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources

VII

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity
flows/issues

VIII

Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in
respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds

IX

Financing to stockbrokers for margin hfading

—[+(ii) Category 11
| (iii) Category TIT

All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i) Category 1

+ . Total Exposure to Capital Market

1380.05 |




Sectoral Exposure

(Amount in Lakhs)
Sectors Current Previous
Year Year B -
Total Gross Percentage | Total Gross Percentage
Exposures | NPA’s of Gross Exposures | NPA's of Gross
(Incl on NPA’s to (Incl on NPA’s to
Balance total Balance total
Sheet and exposure in | Sheet and exposure in
Off Balance that sector | Off Balance that sector
Sheet) Sheet)
Others -
Retail 1,380.05 - - 843.51 - -
Loans

IV. Details of financing of parent company products

The Company has extended Margin Funding Facility to the clients of its Parent Company, IFCI
Financial Services Ltd and Stock holding Corporation of India Ltd.

V. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company

during the current year.

VI. Unsecured Advance

The Company has not advanced loan against intangible securities such as charge over the rights,

/\%

licences, authority, etc., as collaterals.




Disclosure Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Notification DNBR (PD) CC No.
002/03.10.001/2014 -15 dt. 10 November 2014

L Investments (Amount in Lakhs)
~ | Current | Previous
Particulars Year Year
2022-23 | 2021-22
1 Value of Investments
I Gross Value of Investments B
(@) | InIndia 254.05 | 1021.53
(b) [ Outside India, - -
i Provisions for Depreciation
(a) | InIndia 0.05 0.05
(b) | Outside India, = 5
lii Net Value Of Investments
(a) | InIndia 254.00 | 1021.48
(b) | Outside India,
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
2 | investments
I | Opening balance 0.05 0.05
[i | Add: Provisions made during the year - —
Less : Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the
lii | year - --
Iv | Closing balance 0.05 0.05

I1. Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

The company does not deal in derivatives and accordingly disclosures is not required.

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

The company does not deal in derivatives and accordingly disclosures is not required.

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

The company does not deal in derivatives and accordingly disclosures is not required.

ITL. Disclosures relating to Securitisation

- The‘company does not deal in the business of securitisation and accordingly disclosures is

/= /" not required.

X%




IV. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs

The company has not entered into assignment transactions and accordingly disclosures

is not required.

V. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold

The company has not purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets and

accordingly disclosures is not required.
V1 Additional Disclosures.

1. Provisions and Contingencies

To facilitate easy reading of the financial statements and to make the information on

all provisions and contingencies available at one place, NBFCs are required to disclose

in the NTA the following information:

(Amount in Lakhs )
Break up of “Provisions and Contingencies” show under Current | Previous
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account Year Year
2022-23 2021-22
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 0.05 0.05
Provision towards NPA - Write off - --
Provision made towards Income Tax 1013 | 23.46
Other Provision and Contingencies (with details) - -
Provision for Standard Assets 28.80 1737

* Break-up of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision of FY 2022-23

In lakhs

In lak_hs N

Bad debts written off during the
current year

less: Provision written back during
the current year

Bad debts reflected in the profit and
loss statement

ECL provision on Standard Assets

Total ECL

2. Draw Down from Reserves

- Nﬁﬁ)t applicable

Xt

Al __-"-S__uitable disclosures are to be made regarding any draw down from reserves in the NTA -




3. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposure and NPAs

Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs)

] (Amount in Lakhs)
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors Nil
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of Nil
the NBFC

Concentration of Advances

~ (Amount in Lakhs)

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 747.84
Percentage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Advance 54.19%
of the NBFC

Concentration of Exposures™

—(Amount in Lakhs)

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers 747.84
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to 54.19%
Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers / customers

4, Sector-wise NPAS

Percentage of
S.No Sector NPAs to
Total
Advances in
that sector

1. Agriculture & allied activities NIL |
2. MSME NIL
3. Corporate borrowers B NIL
4. Unsecured personal loans NIL
5 Auto loans NIL |
6. Other personal loans * NIL

_~There were no NPAs as on 31.03.2023 and all advances are Standard Assets.

L b 5 %
b i ==
e
/




5. Movement of NPAS

(Amount in Lakhs)
. Current | Previous
Particulars
Year Year
2022-23 | 2021-22
I | Net NPAS to Net Advances
li | Movement of NPAs ( Gross) o
(a) | Opening balance - -
(b) | Additions during the year - -
(c) | Written off during the year - e
(d) | Closing balance - b
lii | Movement of Net NPAs
(a) | Opening balance - -
(b) | Additions during the year - .
(c) | Written of Reductions during the year - =
(d) | Closing balance - -
Iv | Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on
standard assets)
(a) | Opening balance - -
(b) | Provisions made during the year - -
(c) | Write-off / write-back of excess provisions - ~
(d) | Closing balance - -
6. Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)-
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current year.
7. Off-balance sheet SPV sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per

accounting norms)

Name of the SPV Sponsored

Domestic

QOverseas

NA

NA

Xt



VII Miscellaneous:
1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
There is no registration which has been obtained from other financial sector regulators.
2. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

There are no penalties imposed by Reserve Bank of India and other regulators during the

financial year
3. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Not applicable

4. Details of registration with financial regulators

Regulator Registration No.
Ministry of Corporate Affairs U65991TN1989GOI1017792
Reserve Bank Of India B-07-00672

5. Related Party Transactions
Details of all material related party transaction are disclosed in note VI.
6. Remuneration of directors
The company has not paid any remuneration to directors during the year.

7. Disclosure of Complaints

Customer Complaints

(a) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL
(b) | No. of complaints received during the year NIL
(c) | No. of complaints redressed during the year NIL
(d) | No. of complaints pending attend theyear NIL

DISCLOSURE OF FRAUDS REPORTED VIDE DNBS. PD. CC NO. 256/ 03.10.042/ 2011-12
DATED MARCH 02, 2012

(a) Current Year 2022-23-NIL
(b) Previous Year 2021-22-NIL

X



DISCLOSURE ON MORATORIUM - COVID 19 REGULATORY PACKAGE ~ ASSET
CLASSIFICATION AND PROVISIONING FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 IN
PURSUANT TO THE NOTIFICATION VIDE: DOR.NO.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 DATED

APRIL 17, 2020

No moratorium requests relating to the COVID-19 regulatory package were received from the

borrowers and there was no impact on asset classification and provisioning.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPARISON OF PROVISION AS PER IRAC NORMS AND ECL
PURSUANT TO RBI CIRCULAR, VIDE DNBS.PD.CC.NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20 DATED MARCH
13,2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Asset Asset Gross ~ Loss Provisioning | Difference
Classification | Classification carrying Allowance as | required as | between Ind
as per RBI as per Ind AS amount as per Ind AS per IRAC AS 109 and
109 per Ind AS 109 norms IRAC norms
provisioning
Standard Stage 1 1375.94 27.76 5.50 22.26
Standard Stage 2 4.10 1.02 0.02 - 1.01

A) Corporate governance

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Paragraph C of Schedule V - Annual Report) as amended from time to time,
specifies disclosures to be made in the section on the corporate governance of the Annual
Report. With respect to the corporate governance report, non-listed NBFCs should also
endeavour to make full disclosure in accordance with the requirement of SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015. Non-listed NBFCs at the minimum should disclose following under the

corporate governance section of the annual report.

1) Composition of the Board:

SLN| Name of | Direct | Capacity | DIN | No.of | No.of Remuneration No.of
0. Director or (i.e. Board other —— shares
Since | Executive Meetings | Direc Salar | Sittin | Co held in

/Non- He | Atte | torshi yand | g Fee _m1jn and
Executive Id |nde | pts et 19510 conver

/ d comp n tible
Chairma ensatt instru
n/Promo on ments
ter held in

nominee Rs. In the
/Indepen Takh NBFC

dent -




1 RAMKU |15-06- |[NON- [0117]6 |6 1 |[NIL |NIL [NIL |1
MAR 2017 | BXECUTI | 5498
SRINIVA VE
SAN DIRECT
OR
2  |SANJAY |25-10- |INDEPE |0241|6 |6 NI |NIL [1.25 |[NIL | NIL
WASANT | 2019 | NDENT | 4203
RAO DIRECT
TANKSA OR-NON
LE x
EXECUTI
VE
DIRECT
OR
3 ALAN NOMINE | 0349 |6 |6 3 NIL |NIL |NIL |1
SAVIO 30-03- | E 7265
PACHEC |2021 | DIRECT
) OR- |
NON- |
EXECUTI
VE
DIRECT
S i | OR o ! TR S S
4 |[RAMESH |17-06- | CHAIRM |0693 |6 |5 8 NIL |NIL |NIL | NIL
NARAYA | 2019 | AN-NON | 2731
NASWA | - ‘
M | EXECUTI '
GOURL | VE
SANKAR | DIRECT
AN | OR - J
5 [KARPAG |04-10- | MANAG [0975 |6 |2 3 NI, |[NIL | NIL |1
i AM 12022 | ING 5388
SUNDAR | DIRECT |
AMOORT | OR- |
HY | EXECUTI
: VE
DIRECT
o orR | | -
6 KARRA | 01-07- | MANAG [ 0811 |6 |4 NIL |[NIL [NIL |[NIL |1
VISWES | 2021 | ING 1685
WAR DIRECT
RAO* OR -
EXECUTI
.- VE
/%f’? Ass DIRECT
Vgl N N | N I N N N N N N B J
(!" ,:;{ g;-.'-:1'-‘7-'""*(;‘3&56(1 to be associated with the company on account of withdrawal of Nomination by TFCI
\%\_ " Limited w.ef0410.2022




*The share held was transferred to Mrs. S. Karpagam on the date he ceased to be associated

with the company.

Details of change in composition of Board During the current and previous financial year.

EF.Y 2022-2023

Sl.No.

Name of Director

Capacity
(i.e. Executive/Non-
Executive/
Chairman/Promoter
nominee/Independent

Nature of changeﬂm

(resignation,
appointment)

Effective
date

KARRA VISWESWAR
RAO

MANAGING
DIRECTOR -

EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

RESIGNATION

04-10-2022

KARPAGAM
SUNDARAMOORTHY

MANAGING
DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

APPOINTMENT

04-10-2022

F.Y 2021-2022

Sl.No.

Name of Director

Capacity
(i.e. Executive/Non-
Executive/
Chairman/Promoter
nominee/Independent

Nature of change
(resignation,
appointment)

Effective
date

MEERA
RANGANATHAN

MANAGING
DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

RESIGNATION

01-07-2021

KARRA VISWESWAR
RAO

MANAGING
DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

APPOINTMENT

01-07-2021

Where an independent director resigns before expiry of her / his term, the reasons for

resignation as given by her /him shall be disclosed.

Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-se shall be disclosed.

2) Committees of the Board and their composition
(i) Mention the names of the committees of the Board.
1- AUDIT COMMITTEE
2- NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

4

3- ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
RISK COMMITTEE

)<7"




(ii)

For each committee, mention the summarized terms of reference and provide the

following details.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
SI.No | Name of Director Member Capacity No.of.Meetings | No.of share
of (i.e. Executive/Non- of the s held in
committe Executive/ Committee the NBFC
e since | Chairman/Promoter | Hel | Attende
nominee/Independe | d d
nt
1 RAMKUMAR 12-07- NON - EXECUTIVE |5 5 1
SRINIVASAN 2018 DIRECTOR
2, SANJAY 25-10- CHAIRMAN- 5 5 NIL
WASANTRAO 2019 INDEPENDENT
TANKSALE DIRECTOR-NON -
EXECUTIVE
| DIRECTOR |
3. KARPAGAM 04-10- MANAGING 5 2 1
SUNDARAMOORT | 2022 DIRECTOR -
HY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
4. KARRA 01-07- MANAGING 5 o 1
VISWESWAR RAO | 2021 DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR B
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SL.No | Name of Director Member | Capacity No.of Meeting | No.of.share
of (i.e. Executive/Non- | s of the s held in
Committe | Executive/ committee the NBEC
e since Chairman/Promoter | Hel | Attende
nominee/Independe | d d
nt
| RAMKUMAR 11-06- NON - EXECUTIVE | 3 3 1
SRINIVASAN 2021 DIRECTOR
2, SANJAY 25-10- CHAIRMAN- 3 3 NIL
WASANTRAO 2019 INDEPENDENT
TANKSALE DIRECTOR-NON -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR -
3. KARPAGAM 04-10- MANAGING 3 1 1
SUNDARAMOORT | 2022 DIRECTOR -
; HY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR L
4.\ | ALAN SAVIO 02-08- NOMINEE 3 2 1
#* | 2 | PACHECO 2022 DIRECTOR- NON - ]




EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR
3, KARRA 01-07- MANAGING 3 2 1
VISWESWAR RAO | 2021 DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
SL.No | Name of Director Member | Capacity No.of.Meetings | No.of.share
of (i.e. Executive/Non- | of the s held in
committe | Executive/ committee the NBFC
e since Chairman/Promoter | Hel | Attende
nominee/Independe | d d
nt
1 RAMKUMAR 11-06- NON - EXECUTIVE | 2 2 1
SRINTVASAN 2021 DIRECTOR ]
2 KARPAGAM 04-10- MANAGING 2 1 1
SUNDARAMOORT | 2022 DIRECTOR -
HY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
5 KARRA 01-07- MANAGING 2 1 1
VISWESWAR RAO 2021 DIRECTOR -
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
ALM COMMITTEE
SL.No | Name of Director Member | Capacity No.of.Meetings | No.of.share
of (i.e. Executive/Non- | of the s held in
committe | Executive/ Committee the NBFC
e since Chairman/Promoter | Hel | Attende
nominee/Independe | d d
nt
1 RAMKUMAR 17-06- NON - EXECUTIVE | 4 3 /|
SRINTVASAN 2019 DIRECTOR i
2 KARPAGAM 04-10- MANAGING 1 2 1
SUNDARAMOORT | 2022 DIRECTOR -
X EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR -
3 KARRA 01-07- MANAGING 4 2 1
To 2| VISWESWAR RAO 2021 DIRECTOR -
: N EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR




3) General Body Meetings

Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings.

SIL.No. Type of Meeting Date and Place Special resolutions
(Annual/Extra- passed
Ordinary) - -
1 AGM 29-09-2022 No special resolution

passed , only
ordinary resolution

passed.

Statufory Reserve

Details of Creation of reserve fund as per Sec 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 are disclosed in note X111

S
S Karpagam

Managing Director
DIN: 04755388

Place: Chennai

Date: 11-05-2023

N7

" Ramkumar Srifivasan
Director
DIN:NT175498

AV Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer

g

Sarijana Chhabra
Company Secretary
Membership No. A49167




